Pages 3-12

Pages 13-15
Pages 16-19

Pages 20-84

Pages 85-105

JOSHUA PASIN
ATCKR DISTRICT

Proudly providing water from an ancient
source ....well into the future.

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2019. AT 5:30 P.M.
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA 92252

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENT

This is the time set aside for public comment on any District-related matter not
appearing on the agenda. Government Code prohibits the Board from taking action on
these items, but they may be referred for future consideration. Please state your name
and limit your comments to 3 minutes.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Matters on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will be enacted in
a single motion without discussion. Any Board member or member of the public may
request that an item be removed from the Consent Calendar and acted on separately.

e October 2019 Check Register (reviewed by the Finance Committee on
12/11/2019).

e Draft Minutes - November 20, 2019

e Rates & Fees Schedule to Increase January 1, 2020 (reviewed by the Finance
Committee on 12/11/2019).

18/19 AUDIT PRESENTATION BY FEDAK & BROWN, CPA’S—- Recommend
that the Board of Directors receive, ask questions, and accept & file.

REVIEW OF DRAFT COLLECTIONS POLICY (SB998) — Recommend that the
Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 19-1017, Collections Policy (SB998),
(reviewed by the Finance Committee on December 11, 2019).

DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED, COMMENTS AND
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS -

e Public Outreach Consultant — Kathleen Radnich

e Legislative & Public Information Committee — December 4, 2019 - Director
Unger and Director Floen

e MAC Meeting — December 9, 2019 — Director Unger

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 1 of 105



INFORMATION

Finance Committee — December 11, 2019 — Director Johnson and
Director Unger

Water Resources and Operations Committee -December 11, 2019 — Director
Hund and Director Reynolds

Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors — December 12, 2019 — Director
Floen

MWA Technical Advisory Committee — December 19, 2019 — Director
Reynolds

JBWD Board of Directors — January 1, 2020 — CANCELED — New Years Day

10. FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES -

Finance Committee — January 8, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. — Director Johnson and
Director Unger

Water Resources & Operations Committee — January 8, 2020, at 10:30 a.m. —
Director Hund and Director Reynolds

Mojave Water Agenday Board of Directors — January 9, 2020, at 9:30 a.m. —
Director Johnson

Citizens Advisory Council — January 14, 2020, at 6:00 p.m. — Chairperson
Karen Tracy

JBWD Board of Directors — January 15, 2020

11.  CLOSED SESSION — CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL —
POTENTIAL LITIGATION - At this time the Board will go into Closed Session
pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9 to
confer with legal counsel on a matter of potential litigation (one matter).

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION
12. CLOSED SESSION REPORT -
13. ADJOURNMENT

The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item.Any person with a disability who requires
accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior
to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation.

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public
inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 2 of 105



w Joshua Basin Water District

— - e e

Vendor Number Vendar DBA Name Payment Date Payment Type
Payable ¥ Payable Type Payable Date Payable Description
Bank Code: AP-AP Cash
013865 AFSCME 10/10/2019 Regular
AESCMEQ913 Invoice 10/10/2019 VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTION BY UNION M
000575 AFSCME LOCAL 1902 10/10/2019 Regular
AFSCMEDI19 Involkce 10/10/2019 EE UNION DUES - SEPT 19
013346 ANDY'S LANDSCAPE & TREE SERVICE INC. 10/10/2019 Regular
B0B1L Involce 10/10/201% DEMO GARDEN/BUILD MAINT THRU 8/15
013863 ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD AND ROM 10/10/2019 Regular
576422 Invoice 10/10/1019 LEGAL SERVICES THRU 8/31/19
013338 BEVERLY WASZAK 10/10/201% Regular
EW100119 Invoice 10/10/2019 REIMB: MILEAGE & EE THAINING EXPENS
Doa110 BURRTEC WASTE & RECYCUNG SVCS 10/10/2018 Regular
BW023019 Involce 10/10/2015 TRASH REMOVAL {SHOP) - SEPT 19
Bwi019 Involce 10/10/2019 TRASH & RECYCLING [OFFICE) - OCT 19
BW10198 tavaice 10/20/2019 TRASH & RECYCLING (OFFICE)- OCT 19
013372 CALIFORNIA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 10/10/2019 Regular
51405147 Involee 10/10/2019 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP - 10/15/19 - 10/1
o13a1 CALIFORMIA SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE ¢ 10/10/2019 Regular
200005166 Invoice 19/10/2019 CSMFO ANNUAL CONFERENCE: 1/26/20 -
001850 CLINICAL LAB OF 5.8. INC 10/10/2015% Regular
970801 Involte 10/10/2019 HOMEC WWTP SAMPLING- ALG 19
001933 COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDING 10/10/2019 Regular
2019-0015PT Invoice 10/10/2019 LINPAID SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REPORY
002420 DLT SOLUTIONS, INC 10/10/2019 Regular
51443671 Involce 10/10/2019 2020 AUTOCAD SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL
000126 EAST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 10/10/2018 Regular
INV4033 invoica 10/10/2019 ERNIE MEMBERSHIP DUES THRU 6/30/19
VEND1466 FEDAK & BROWN LLP 10/10/2019 Regular
ER092619 Involce 10/10/2019 FINANCIAL AUDIT 18/19 - 5EPT 19
0322 FRONTIER CALIFORNIA INC. 10f10/201% Regular
EC1010 Involce 10/10/2019 HDMC WWTP - TELEPHONE
013802 HASA, INC, 10/10/2019 Regular
§57276 Invoice 10/10/2019 WATER TREATMENT EXPENSE
004720 INLAND WATER WORKS 10/10/2019 Regular
$1025740.004 Involce 10/10/2019 INVENTORY
005054 KATHLEEN J. RADNICH 10/10/2019 Regutar
151006-1 Invaice 10/10/201% PUBLIC RELATIONS SERVICES
191508-1CR Credit Memo 10/10/2019 CREOIT: REVERSE REIMBURSEMENT
192208-1 Invoice 10/10/2013 PUBLIC RELATIONS SERVICES
1925083, Involce 10/10/2015 PUBLIC RELATIONS SERVICES
003330 NBS 10/10/2019 Regular
9190000196 Invoice 10/10/2019 CMM ADMIN FEES - 4THQTR 19

*Check Report JBWD
By Check Number
Date Range: 10/01/2019 - 10/31/201%

Discount Amount  Payment Amount

Discount Amount  Payable Amount
0.00 8.00

0.00 8.00
0.00 550.68

0.00 590.68
0.00 650.00

0.00 650.00
0.00 5,385.45

0.00 5,385.45
G.Co 236,40

0.00 236.40
0.00 806.19

c.00 362.00

0.00 156.51

0.00 287.68
0.00 749.00

0.00 749.00
0.00 425.00

0.00 425.00
0.00 960.00

0.00 960,00
0.00 403.27

0.00 403.27
0.00 1,759.45

0.00 1,759.45
0.00 400.00

0.00 400.00
0.0¢ 7,445.00

0.00 7.445.00
0.C0 2131.20

2.00 213,20
0.00 573.%0

0.00 573.50
0.00 2,144.23

0.00 2,144,23
0.00 2,620.80

0.00 1,020.60

0.00 -58.80

0.00 768.60

0.00 890.40
0.00 6,508.35

0.00 2,045.B5

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 3 of 105

Number

61696

61697

61698

61699

61700

61701

61702

61703

61704

61705

§1706

61707

61708

61709

61710

61711

61712

61713



*Check Report JBWD

Vendor Number
Payable it
9150000386

013848
370338

000070
257382

013828

003085
£06362

000225
AR10GE1D

000051
2R100813

Di3228
21093013

011101
109396
109399
103460
109467

013788
1093

013366
0710670 IN
0717235:18
0717356 N

011114
18551

000504
20931

000501
0631873

000501
1P1A100319

013346
g031L

013863
1372

VENO1462
228393

Vendor DBA Name Payment Date Payment Type
Payable Type Payable Date Payable Description

involce 10/10/2019 STANDBY ADMIN FEES - 4TH QTR
INDUSTRIAL METAL SUPPLY CO. 10/10/2018 Regular

Invoice 10/10/2019 SHOP EXPENSE

ONLINE INFORMATION SERVICES, INC. 10/10/2019 Regular

Invoice 10/10/2018 1D VERIF. SERV. THRU 9/30/19

PRO SECURITY SYSTEMS, INC. 10/10/201% fegular

lvolce 10/10/2019 ALAAM SYSTEM UPGRADES @ SHOP
Involce 10/10/2019 ALARM SYSTEM UPGRADES @ SHOP
RANDY MAYES 10/10/2019 Regular

Involce 10/10/2019 REIMB MILES: SBC DEPT OF PW- UTILITY C
ROO EQUIPMENT COMPANY 10/10/2019 Regular

Invoice 10/10/2019 CIRP WATER TRUCK MAINTENANCE
Invoice 10/10/2019 ID 4101 BACKHOE MAINTENANCE

RDO EQUIPMENT COMPANY 10/10/2019 Regular

Involce 10/10/2019 2020 TOWMASTER TRAILER T-50

RICH, AUTUMN 10/10/2019 fagular

Involce 10/10/201% EDUCATION REMBUASEMENT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY RECORDER 10/10/2018 Regular

Invoke 10/10/2019 RELEASE OF LIENS

SARAH J. JOHNSON 10/10/2019 Regular

Invelce 10/10/2019 REIMA: CSDA MILEAGE & MEALS
VAGABOND WELDING SUPPLY 10/10/201% Regular

Involce 10/10/2019 SMALL TOOLS - PRODUCTION

Involce 10/10/2019 SMALL TOOLS - PRODUCTION

Involkce 10/10/2019 SHOP EXPENSE/SMALL TOOLS - PRODUCT
Involce 10/10/2019 SHOP EXPENSE

STURDIVAN EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT CONS  10/10/2019 Regular

lvolce 10/10/2019 COMMUNICATION TOOL - 18/20

THE 50C0 GROUP, INC. 10/10/2019 Regular

Involee 10/10/2015 FUEL FOR VEHICLES

Involce 10/10/2019 FUEL FOR VEHICLES

Invoice 10/10/2019 FUEL FOR VEHICLES

VAN DYKE CORP 10/10/201% Regular

Involce 10/10/2019 EXCAVATOR RELOCATION SERVICES: SADD
ACTION PUMPING, INC. 10/24/2019 Regular

Invoice 10/24/2019 HDMC WW; PUMPING

ACWA/IPIA 10/24/2019 Regular

Iewvolce 10/24/2018 EE HEALTH BENEFIT & EAP NOV 13
ACWA/JIPIA 10/24/2019 Regular

Involce 10/24/2019 AUTO & GENERAL LIABILITY 10/19 - 10/20
ANDY'S LANDSCAPE & TREE SERVICE INC. 10/24/2019 Regular

Involce 10/24/2019 DEMO GARDEN/BUILD MAINT THRU 10/1
ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD AND ROM  10/24/2019 Regular

Invoice 10/24/201% LEGAL SERVICES THRU 9/30/19

BAY AREA CARBIDE, INC. 10/24/2019 Regular

Involce 10/24/2019 TOOL/EQUIP REPAIR

Date Range: 10/01/2019 - 10/31/2(

Dlscount Amount  Payment Amount Number

Discount Amount Payable Amount

0.00 4,462.54
0.00 1,006.14

0.00 1,006.14
0.00 264,30

0.00 264.30
0.00 5,420,899

0.00 4,5831.49

0,00 B837.50
0.00 84,68

0.00 B4.68
0.00 619.13

0.00 91.96

0.00 527.17
0.00 36,116.85

0.00 36,116.85
0.00 300.00

0.00 300.00
0.00 16.00

0.00 16.00
0.00 227.29

0.00 227.29
0.00 911.51

0.00 492,55

0.00 155.03

0.00 230.82

0.00 33.11
0.00 5,411.00

0.00 4,411,00
0.00 8,492.50

0.00 3,272.42

000 1,797.53

0.00 4,422.55
0.00 460.00

0.00 460.00
0.00 1,820.00

0.00 1,820,00
8,00 25,033.26

0.00 25,033.26
0.00 55,944.53

0.00 §5,944.53
0.00 650.00

0.00 650.00
0.00 8,296.05

0.00 8,295.05
0.00 91.78

D.00 91,78

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 4 of 105

61714

61715

61716

63717

61718

61719

61720

€1721

61722

61723

61724

61725

61726

61727

81728

61729

61730

61731

61732



*Check Report JBWE

Vendor Number
Payable ¥

001555
191003192101

001652
12:.026 0
001850

271123
571126

013730
40196

000237
2990561:030532

013365
23AR1019427
25AR1021694

002565
20196584

013818
0778152t

003025
£:765:01073

Vendor DBA Name

Payable Type Payable Date

CENTRATEL

Involce 10/24/2019

CIRCLE MOUNTAIN BIOLDGICAL CONSULTANTE 10/24/201%
Involce 10/24/201%

CLINICAL LAB OF 5.8. INC

Involce 10/24/2019

Invoice 10/24/2018

COLANTUONOD, HIGHSMITH & WHATLEY, PC

Involee 10/24/2019

COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENT INSURANCE CO, IN 10/24/2015

Invoice 10/24/2019
IMAGE SOURCE

Involce 10/24/2019
involce 10/24/2019

DUDEX AND ASSOCIATES, INC

Invaice 10/24/2019
EBIX, INC.

Involce 10/24/2019
FEDEX

Involce 10/24/2019
GARDA CL WEST, INC.

Invoice 10/24/2019
GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO

Invoke 10/24/2019
INLAND WATER WORKS

Invalkce 10/24/2019
Invoice 10/24/2019
Involce 10/24/2019
KATHLEEN 1. RADNICH

tnvolkce 10/24/2019
Invoikce 10/24/2019
LORI G, HERBEL

Invalce 10/24/2019
FRED'S TIRE & AUTOMOTIVE

Involce 10/24/2019
tnvolce 10/24/2019
McMASTER-CARR SURPPLY COMPANY
Involce 10/24/2019
Involce 10/24/201%
Credit Memo 10/24/2019
MICHAEL BAXER INTERNATIONAL, INC
Involee 10/24/2019
FORSHOCK

Involce 10/24/2019
Involce 10/24/2019
Involce 10/24/2019

NORTHAMERICAN TRANSPORTATION

PaymentDate  Payment Type
Payable Description

10/24/2019 Regular
DISPATCH SERVICES - SEPT 19

Regular
TRAINING: DESERT TORTOISE AWARENESS

10/24/2019 Regular
SAMPLING - SEPT 19
HDMC WWTP SAMPLING- SEPT 19

10/24/2019 flegular
LEGAL SERVICES - SEPT 19

Regular
EE LFE INSURANCE - SEPT 19

10/24/2019 Regular
SHOP EXPENSE 9/01/19 - 9/30/13
OFFICE EXPENSE 9/5/19 - 10/3/19

10/24/2019 Regular
ENG SERV: MULTIFLE PROJECTS THRU 8/3

10/24/2019 Regular
INSURANCE CERTIFICATION SERVICES 9/1

10/24/2013
SHIPPING

Regular

10/24/2019 Regular
COURIER FEES - OCT 19

10/24/2019 Regular
M/L REPAIR: 3/8° COLD MIX

10/24/20619 Regutar
SADDLEBACK E TILFORD SUPPLIES
TILFORD SUPPLIES
PUMPING PLANT SUPPLIES

10/24/2019 Regular
PUBLIC RELATIONS SERVICES
PUBLIC RELATIONS SERVICES

1012412015 Regular
PUBLIC INFO/FARMER'S MARKET

10/24/2019 Regular
VACUUM MAINTENANCE: E72
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: V31

10/24/1019 Regular
METER REPAIR SUPPLIES
METER REPAIR SUPPLIES
METER REPAIR SUPPLIES

10/24/2019 Regular
TILFORD WAY PARCEL CORNER SURVEY

10/24/2019 Regutar
MONTHLY SCADA MONITORING
MONTHLY SCADA MONITORING
SCADA MAINTENANCE

10/24/2019 Regular

Date Range: 10/01/2019 - 10/31/2

Plscount Amount Payment Amount  Numbes
Discount Amount  Payable Amaunt
0.00 526,07 61733
0.00 526.07
0.00 820.00 51734
0.00 B20.00
0.00 1,791.00 61735
0.00 331.00
0.00 960.00
0.00 B68.00 61736
0.00 868.00
0.00 2,251.64 61737
0.00 2,251.64
0.00 434,84 61738
0.00 8214
0.00 35270
0.00 5,597.50 61739
0.00 5,597.50
0.00 6,820.32 61740
0.00 6,820.32
000 68.74 61741
0.00 68.74
0.00 684,29 61742
0.00 684,29
0.00 2,522.32 61743
0.00 503
0.00 1,81936 651744
0.00 585.08
0,00 905.10
0.00 329.18
0.00 2,325.78 61745
0.00 1,151.38
0.00 974.40
0.00 175.00 61746
0.00 175.00
0.00 53831 61747
0.00 523.31
0.00 15.00
0.00 138.07 61748
0.00 262.75
0.00 121.86
0.00 -246.54
0.00 3,800.00 61749
0.00 3,800,00
0.00 768.00 61750
0.00 38.00
0.00 205.00
.00 525.00
0.00 17110 61751

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 5 of 105



*Check Report JBWD Date Range: 10/01/2019 - 10/31/2(

Vendor Number Vendor DBA Name Payment Date  Payment Type Discount Amount  Payment Amount Number
Payable ¥ Payable Type Payable Date Payable Description Discount Amount  Payable Amount
25787 Invoice 10/24/2019 DALIG & ALCOHOL TESTING - 4TH QTR 19 0.00 171.10

013866 OFFICE OF THE ASSESSOR-RECORDER-CLERK  10/24/201% Regular 0.00 10.00 61752
108555 Involce 10/24/201% MAP REVISIONS - OCTOBER 19 0.00 10.00

000236 PAYPRQ ADMINISTRATORS 10/24/2019 Regular 0.00 55.00 61753
23031 Invoice 10/24/2019 FSA ADMIN FEES - SEPT 19 0.00 55.00

008200 PITNEY BOWES INC. 10/24/2019 Regular 0.00 320.21 61754
3103450882 Involce 10/24/201% LEASING CHARGES - 3RD QTR 19 0.00 320.21

008415 PRUDENTIAL OVERALL SUPPLY 10/24/2018 Regular 0.00 392.24 61755
22870948 Invaice 10/24/2019 SHOP EXPENSE 000 55.98
226870950 Invoice 10/24/2018 SHOP EXPENSE 0.00 151.25
22878150 Involce 10/24/2013 SHOP EXPENSE 0.00 55.58
22878193 Irnvolce 10/24/2019 SHOP EXPENSE 0.00 125.03

013361 CLI1NN COMPANY 10/24/2019 Regular 0.00 4,339.07 61756
BCI0001B262 tnvolce 10/24/2019 GENERATOR REPAIR: GR-2 0.00 7110
PCI00D18416 Involce 10/24/2019 GENERATOR REPAIR: GRS 0.00 156.84
WOG0H006024  Involce 10/24/2019 GENERATOR 5 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE 0.00 B5S.48
WOG00005025  Invoice 10/24/201% GENERATOR 2 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE 0.00 BS2.06
WOGQ0006026  Invokce 10/24/2019 GENERATOR 1 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE 0.00 852.06
WOGOON06063  Involce 10/24{2019 GENERATOR 7 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE 0.00 783.11
WOG00008064  Involce 10/24/2019 GENERATOR 5 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE 0.00 76R.42

008414 PROVIDED 10/24/2019 Regular 0.00 150.00 61757
1697 Invoice 10/24/2019 VIDEOD TAPING & YOU TUBE BO MEETINGS 0.00 150.00

013833 SERVICEMASTER 360 PREMIER CLEANING 10/24/2013 Reguiar 0.00 1,239,75 61758
181336 Involce 10/24/201% JANITORIAL SERVICES - OCT 19 0.00 1,239.75

VENO1020 SOUTHWEST NETWORKS, INC. 10/24/2019 Regular 0.00 2,337.25 61759
19-100225C Involce 10/24/2013 OFFICE 365 MONTHLY MAINT - NOV 19 0.00 746.00
19-9039 Invoice 10/24/2019 SUPPLEMENTAI IT SERVICES (AMC) - THR 0.00 1,591.25

002920 STANDARD INSURANCE CO 10/24/2019 Regular 0.00 1,281.50 61760
§711019 Invoice 10/24/2019 EE LIFE INSURANCE - OCT 19 0.00 1,140.75
811113 Involce 10/24/2019 EE LIFE INSURANCE - NOV 19 0.00 1,140.75

013849 TERRA VERDE ENERGY LALC 10/24/2019 Regular 0.00 15,626.70 61761
a5 Invoice 10/24/201% SOLAR FEASABILITY STUDY 0.00 15,626.70

010535 TOPS N BARRICADES 10/24/2015 Regular 0.00 1,032.04 61762
1077903 Involce 10/24/2019 CIRP SUPPLIES 0.00 1,032.04

010690 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES 10/24/2019 Regular 0.00 118.00 61763
025-273867 Involce 10/24/2019 CALL NOTIFICATION FEES: OCT - DEC 0.00 11R.00

010850 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT 10/24/2019 Regular 0.00 181.44 51754
18DSBFES1Z3 Inwvoke 10/24/2019 DG SAFE BOARD FEES - 2018 0.00 93.69
920190340 Invoice 10/24/2015 TICKET DELIVERY SERVICE - SEPT 13 0.00 B7.55

010990 UTILQUEST LLC. 10/24/2019 Regutar 0.00 708.12 61765
281302.Q Invoice 10/24/201% CONTRACT LOCATING EXPENSE 0.00 254.80
281545-0 Involce 10/24/2019 CONTRACT LOCATING EXPENSE 0.00 115.00
281889-0 Invoice 10/24/2019 CONTRACT LOCATING EXPENSE 0.00 231.80
282141-0 rwokce 10/24/2019 CONTRACT LOCATING EXPENSE 0.00 10652

000327 WATER QUALITY SPECIALISTS 10/24/2019 Regular 000 3,459.39 61766
E£180 Invoice 10/24/2019 HDMC WWTP: OPERATION/MAINT & SUP 0.00 3,459.39

011615 WESTERN EXTERMINATOR CO. 10/24/201% Regular 0.00 34,00 61767
WEQ93019 Involte 10/24/2018 PEST CONTROL SERVICES - SHOP 0.00 34.00

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 6 of 105



*Check Report JBWD

Vendor Number
Payable #
013359

000575
ARSCMELNL

000248
334845

000236
PPE8:27-19

0015317
PPE27:13

000510

0008970092219

009878
SCE0913

VEND1533
515030305

000248
235239

000236
PEE 10-11-19

001004
BAQ919

001011
BA0919

001013
BAQ1S

001009
BAQ919

001630

822480028X1005

013196
1214863980

Vendor DBA Name

Payable Type Payable Date
XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES

Involce 10/24/2019
Invoice 10/24/2019
NAPA AUTO PARTS

Involce 10/24/2019
Invoice 10/24/2019
Involce 10/24/2019
nvolce 10/24/2019
Credit Memo 10/24/2018
Involce 10/24/2019
Involce 10/24/2019
Involce 10/24/2019
Invoke 10/24/2019
Invoice 10/24/2019
Involce 10/24/2019
Invoice 10/24/2019
ACWA/SIRIA

tnvolkce 10/24/2019
AFSCME LOCAL 1902

Involce 10/24/2019
PAYCHEX

Invoice 10/04/2019
PAYPRO ADMINISTRATORS

Involce 10/04/2019
CalPERS

Invoice 10/05/2019
TIME WARNER CABLE

Involce 10/09/2019
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON
Involce 10/10/201%
PAYMENTUS GROUP INC.

Involce 10/16/2D19
PAYCHEX

invoke 10/18/2019
PAYPRO ADMINISTRATORS

Involce 10/18/2019
BUSINESS CARD

Invoice 10/21/2019
BUSINESS CARD

lwolce 10/21/2019
BUSINESS CARD

Involce 10/21/2019
BUSINESS CARD

Involce 10/21/2019
ATAT MOBILITY

Involce 10/23/2019
TPX COMMUNICATIONS

Invoice 10/23/2019

Payment Date  Payment Type
Payable Descriptlen

10/24/2019 Regular
SHOP EXPENSE 9/27/15 - 10/26/19
OFFICE EXPENSE 10/7/19 - 11/6/19

10/24/2015 Regular
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: V27
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: V39
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: V39
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: V27
CAEDIT: CORE RETURN
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: V39
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: Va9
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: V39
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: V39
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: V39
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: V31
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

10/24/2019 Regular
WORKERS COMP JUL - SEPT 19

10/2a/2018 Regular
EE UNIDON DUES - OLT 19

10/04/2019 Manual
PAYROLL PROCESSING FEE

10/D4/2019 Manual
EE FSA DEDUCTIONS 10-4-19

10/0%/2019 Manual
PAY PERIOD ENDING 9/27/18

10/09/2019 Manual
CABLE & INTERNET - SEPT 18

10/10/2013 Manual
POWER FOR PUMPING - SEPT 19

10/16/2013 Manual
CREDIT CARD PROCESSING FEE - SEPT 19

10/18/1019 Manual
PAYROLL PROCESSING FEE

10/18/2019 Manual
EE FSA DEDUCTIONS 10-18-19

10/21/2019 Manual
TELEPHONE {OFFICE) & CSMFO ANNUAL

10/21/2019 Manual
OFFICE SUPPLIES/PLOTTER SUPPLIES/EE T

10/23/2019 Manual
OFFICE SUPPLIES/BUSINESS EXPENSE

10/21/2019 Manual
BIG TEX FLAT BED/FUEL TANK RPR/2018 D

10/23/2019 Manual
COMMUNICATIONS - SEPT 15

10/23/2019 Manual
TELEPHONE {OFFICE) - SEPT 19

Date Range: 10/01/2013 - 10/31/2(

Discount Amount  Payment Amount

Discount Amount  Payable Amount

0.00 612.06
0.00 216.90
2.00 3595.66

0.00 980.59
0.00 149.84
0,00 85.69
0.00 141.35
0.00 136.74
0.00 -19.58
0.00 154.73
0.00 55.16
0.00 38.21
0.00 193.44
0.00 554
0.00 24.59
0.00 4.88

0.00 10,024.19
0.00 10,024.1%

0.00 590.68
0.00 530.68

0.00 a54.03
0.00 354,03

0.00 13541
0.00 13541

0.00 13,047.76
0.00 13,047.76

0.00 355.70
0.00 355.70

0.00 28,832.27
0.00 28,832.27

0.00 2,837.50
0.00 2,837.50

0.00 354.03
0.00 354.03

0.00 13541
0.00 135.41

0.00 1,057.56
0.00 1,067.56

0.00 3,600.92
0.00 3,600.92

0.00 117.75
¢.0o 117.75

0.00 3,81539
0.00 3,816.39

0.00 3,127.81
0.00 3,127.81

0.00 £06.24
0.00 508,24

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 7 of 105

Number

61768

61769

61776

1777

801261

901262

501253

501264

801265

901266

901267

901268

901269

501270

801271

901272

9501273

501274



*Check Report 18BWD

Vendor Number
Payable ¥

004135
HDOD919

009880
5CE1019

001517
PPE10:13:19

000025
[CMARCR(MD

Date Range: 10/01/2019 - 10/31/2(

Vendor DBA Name Payment Date  Payment Type Discount Amount  Payment Amount
Payabie Type Payable Date Payable Description Discount Amount  Payable Amount
HOME DEPOT CAEDIT SERVICES 10/24/201% Manual 0.00 2,374,22
Invoice 10/24/2019 SMALL TOOLS/MAINLINE & LEAX REPAIR/ D.00 2,374.22
SOUTHERN CALSFORNIA EDISON CO 10/24/2019 Manual 0.00 2,116.10
Invoice 10/24/2019 POWER TO BLDGS & GEN-OCT 19 0.00 2,116.10
CalPERS 10/24/201% Manual 0.00 13,04327
Invoice 10/24/2018 PAY PERICD ENDING 10/11/18 0.00 13,043.27
ICMA RC 10/31/2019 Manual 0.00 5,370.32
Invoice 10/31/2019 457 REMITTANCE - OCT 19 0.00 5,370.32
Bank Code AP Summary
Payable Payment
Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 126 76 0.00 259,457.54
Manual Checks 18 18 0.00 £1,192.6%
Volded Checks 0 1] 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 1] 0.00 0.00
EFT's 0 0 0.00 0.00
144 9 0.00 340,650.23

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 8 of 105



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT
UTILITY REFUND REGISTER

Account

Number

03-00268-000
04-00013-002
06-00041-011
07-00013-024
08-00151-016
10-00137-006
10-00239-009
10-00261-017
11.00035-005
11-00176-008
13-00151-008
14-00004-009
14-00123-000
53-00018-012
55-00245-012
58-00087-010
61-00182-021
63-00087-000
63-00161-0085
64-00066-012
65-00207-000
03-00242-008
13-00240-014
51-00044-003
52-00044-015
54-99255-000
65-01302-000

Name

MARK BLAUSTONE FAM TR/
PARKER, LORI

EISENMAN, NADAV
JEFFERS, PATRICIA
RICABLANCA, RUTH B
PARGA, PRISCILLA M
GIBSON, RYAN

ERWIN, SHELBY

CILOSSON, TARYN

A.LM. RENTAL PROPERTIES
BROWN, JOHN F

66031 TWENTYNINE PALMS HWY, LLC
BADILLO, CHARLES
HARNAGE, DENNIS A

KYLE, AARON J

HOUT, MARANIE

REHOME, MATTHEW G
ALAN K & JUDITH A REMELE
WILLIAMS, CHYVONNE M
LOPEZ, NATHAL!}

NIGHT, MORGAN

WOOD, LINDSAY M

LMR PROPERTIES LLC
DURRETT, JACOB A
RODRIGUEZ, ALFREDO MOREND
EYNON MANAGEMENT
DIAMOND INVESTORS LLC

Date

10/10/2019
10/10/2019
10/10/2019
101102019
10/10/2019
10/10/2019
10/10/2019
10/10/2019
10/10/2019
10/10/2019
10/110/2018
10/10/2019
10/10/2019
10/10/2019
10/10/2019
10/10/12019
10140/2019
1071012019
10/10/2019
10/10/2019
10/10/2018
10/24/2019
10/24/2019
10/24/2019
10/24/2019
10/24/2019
10/24/2018

Type

Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund
Refund

Amount
7.14
77.22
81.17
43.10
17.92
36.54
204.26
35.10
39.50
162.68
196.02
30.70
30.70
4,10
117.83
4.50
137.58
10.30
6.44
62.92
11.22
167.14
169.92
22.51
151.01
1,720.95
169.31

3!707.73

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 9 of 105

Reference
Check #: 61675

Check # 61676
Check # 61677
Check #; 61678
Check #: 61679
Check #: 61680
Check #: 61681
Check #: 61682
Check # 61683
Check #; 61684
Check #: 61685
Check #; 61688
Check #: 61687
Check # 61688
Check #: 61680
Check #: 61690
Check #: 1691
Check #: 61692
Check #: 61693
Check #: 61694
Check #: 61695
Check #: 61770
Check #: 61771
Check #; 61772
Check #; 61773
Check #: 61774
Check #; 61775



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DIRECTOR PAY
DISTRICT

DT s 09/14/2018 - 1011172019
JOSHUA TREE, CA 92252
Employee Number Employee Name Date Type Units Additions
10511 Floen, Thamas 0S/182018  Director Pay 1.0000 $173.63
Note: JBWD BOARD
MEETING
1/DIR/S04/
10/02/2019  Direclor Pay 1.0000 $173.63
Note: LEGISLATIVE &
PUBLIC INFO
COMMITTEE MEETING
1DIRIS04!
‘Fotals: $347.26 $0.00
Employes Total: $347.26
Emplovge Number Emploves Name DRate Ivpe Units Additions DReductions
10510 Hund, Geary 094162019 Direcior Pay 1.0000 $173.63
Nole: JEBWD BOARD
MEETING
1IDIRIS04/
10/09/2018 Director Pay 1.0000 $173.683
Note: WATER
RESOURCES & OPS
COMMITTEE MEETING
1/DIR/504!
Totals: $347.26 $0.00

Employas Total: $347.26

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 10 of 105



Employee Number Employes Name Date
10508 Johnson, Robert 09/17/2019
09/17/2019
09/18/2019
09/2812019
09/282019
10/09/2019
Employge Number Employee Nome Date
10505 Reynolds, Michael 08/17/2019
09/18/2019
10/08/2019

Tvpe Unils
Director Pay 1.0000
Nola: ADHOC GM

1DIR/S04/

Meal / Lodging

Note: MEAL: ADHOC

GM

1/DIR/SC4/

Diracior Pay 1.0000
Nota: JBWD BCARD

MEETING

UDIR/S04/

Director Pay 1.0000
Note: 9/26/18 MWA

BOARD MEETING

1/DIR/504/

Mileage / Vehicle Exp

Nota: 9/26/19 MILES:

MWA BOARD MEETING
1/DIR/504¢

Director Pay 1.0000
Nots: FINANCE

COMMITTEE MEETING
1DIR/504/

DIRECTOR PAY
091472019 - 1011172019

Additions Deductions

$173.63

$54.18

$173.63

$173.63

$74.59

$173.63

Totals:
Employes Total:

Typsy Units
Dirsctor Pay 1.0000
Note: ADHOC GM

1/DIRIS04/

Director Pay 1.0000
Nots: JBWD BOARD

MEETING

1/DIR/S04!

Direcior Pay 1.0600
Nots: WATER

RESQURCES & OPS
COMMITTEE MEETING
1/DIR/504f

$823.29 $0.00
$823.20

$173.63

$173.63

§$173.63

Totals:
Employes Total:

$520.89 $0.00
$520.59

Special Board of Directors Meeting

December 19, 2019 Page 11 of 105



DIRECTOR PAY
09142018 - 10112018

Emploves Number Employes Name Date Type Units
10509 Unger, Rebecca 05182019  Direclor Pay 1.0000 517363
Nols: JEWD BOARD
MEETING
1IDIR/504/
10/02/2012  Direclor Pay 1.0000 $173.63
Nole: LEGISLATIVE &
PUBLIC INFO
COMMITTEE MEETING
1DIRISD4/
Totals: $347.26 $0.00
Employoe Total: $347.26
Pay Adjustment Summary
Type Units Additions  Deductions Grand Totals:  $2,385.96 50.00
Oirector Pay 13.0000 $2,257.19 Grand Total:  $2,385.95
Meal / Lodging §54.18
Mileage / Vehicla Exp $74.59

D

Special Board of Directors Meeting
ecember 19, 2019 Page 12 of 105



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT
MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2019

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Director Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:30
p.m.

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM - Director Johnson, Director Unger, Director Floen, Director Hund,
and Director Reynolds.

STAFF PRESENT -Mark Ban, GM, Susan Greer, AGM, Sarah Johnson, Director of Administration, and
Anne Roman, Accountant

CONSULTANTS PRESENT -Kathleen Radnich, Public OQutreach, and Sean McCarty, West Coast Civil

APPROVAL OF AGENDA - Director Hund motioned to approve the Agenda with a change to item #7
“Citizens Advisory Committee” to “Citizens Advisory Council”. Director Reynolds seconded.

MSC! (Hund/Reynolds) 5/0/0 motion carried.
PUBLIC COMMENT - None

CONSENT CALENDAR - Director Reynolds moved to approve the consent calendar. Director Floen
seconded with a change to page 3 of the October 16, 2019 draft minutes to change “Director Floen had his
Jeep there with his survival gear” to “Director Floen had his Jeep survival gear there”.

MSC! (Reynolds/Floen) 5/0/0 motion carried.

CITIZENS ADVISORY COUNCIL REPORT AND APPOINTMENT - Chairperson Karen Tracy gave the
report on their last meeting and nominated Barbara Delph for appointment to the Citizens Advisory
Council. Ms. Delph introduced herself to the Board.

Director Unger motioned to appoint Barbara Delph to the Citizens Advisory Council. Director Johnson
seconded.

MSC' (Unger/Johnson) 5/0/0 motion carried.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REPLACEMENT PROGRAM - FISCAL YEAR 20/21 WATERMAIN
REPLACEMENT DESIGN — GM Ban gave the staff report and introduced Sean McCarty of West Coast
Civil for any questions the Board may have.

Sean McCarty, West Coast Civil, informed the Board that he has designed over 20 miles of capital mainline
replacement with GM Ban at Hi-Desert Water District and recently completed the Saddleback project here
at JBWD. He looks forward to improving the infrastructure and getting the water loss down.

This was followed by a brief Q& A with the Board.
PUBLIC COMMENT -

Jane Jarlsberg, Joshua Tree appreciated the carefulness on the easements because of what’s beer going on
with Frontier Communications.

PUBLIC COMMENT CLOSED -

Director Hund motioned to approve the proposal from West Coast Civil to continue with the Capital
Improvement and Replacement Program.,

MSC' (Hund/Reynolds) 5/0/0 motion carried.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 13 of 105



BOARDROOM TECHNOLOGY UPDATE - GM Ban gave the staff report and recommended that the
Board approve Southwest’s proposal to upgrade the dais to add Thin Clients and screens. This was
followed by a brief Q& A with the Board.,

PUBLIC COMMENT -

Barbara Delph, Joshua Tree, asked if everything will be in PDF’s will the Directors be able to write notes or
make comments.

GM Ban replied that there are programs that will allow the Directors to write over the PDF’s and they will
be able to make comments and write notes.

Director Hund replied that even without additional sofiware, you can insert comments within a PDF.

Jane Jarlsberg, Joshua Tree, commented that you can also use the little post it’s within the PDF to make
comments or write notes. She asked if the public could tour behind the dais to view the new technology.

PUBLIC COMMENT CLOSED —
This was followed by a brief Q& A with the Board.
Director Unger motioned to approve Southwest’s proposal. Director Floen seconded.

MSC' (Unger/Floen) 5/0/0 motion carried.

REQUIRED ETHICS AND HARASSMENT TRAINING - Director Sarah Johnson gave the staif report to
amend Admin Codes 5.01 and 5.02 that update the Ethics & Anti-Harassment training requirements with
Resolution No. 19-1016. This was followed by a brief Q& A with the Board.

Director Reynolds motioned to approve Resolution No. 19-1016. Director Unger seconded.

MSC' (Reynolds/Unger) 5/0/0 motion carried.

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT — GM Ban explained that the CIRP crew took a small pause in the

pipeline project because of the back log of 400 meters. The CIRP crew helped staff with replacing all 400
meters within about 8 days.

PUBLIC COMMENT -
Jane Jarlsberg, Joshua Tree, asked if partial or all the meters had been replaced.

GM Ban explained that there is a Capital Project to replace 900 meters a year over the next 5 years and we
have replaced 400 of the 900 meters this year so far.

Jane Jarlsberg, Joshua Tree commented that at the last Board meeting it was stated that new meters may
make your bill go up. She asked if there is a way to know when you will receive a new meter and how it
relates to your bill?

GM Ban said a crew member will knock on your door and let you know your water is being shut off for a
short period of time in order to replace your meter with a new one.

PUBLIC COMMENT CLOSED -
DIRECTOR COMMENTS AND REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED -

Director Unger reported on the MWA Technical Advisory Committee meeting she attended on October 21,
2019, that the Mojave Water Agency purchased just under 7200-acre feet of water rights, along with 7 wells
for monitoring and easement rights in the Baja Sub Area.

Director Reynolds commented on the Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts dinner that
was held at the Sierra Lakes Golf Club, Fontana, CA.

Director Unger reported on the Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors meeting.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 14 of 105



Director Johnson reported that the Morongo Basin Pipeline Commission will be having a maintenance
project about mid-year 2020. It will shut down the pipeline for a while, but it will not affect operations. He
also reported on the Finance Committee of November 13, 2019.

Director Hund reported that at the Water Resources and Operations Committee they discussed the
replacement and progress of the 400 water meters, CIRP, and the boardroom technology.

Director Reynolds commented on the Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors meeting that he attended
on November 14, 2019. He stated that last year was a good water year and spoke about water banking.

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS, DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES —
Director Johnson read off the list of upcoming meetings.

ADJOURNMENT - Director Unger motioned to adjourn. Director Reynolds seconded.
MSC! (Unger/Reynolds) 5/0/0 motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Mark Ban, General Manager and Secretary of the Board

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 15 of 105



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT
MEETING AGENDA REPORT

Meeting of the Board of Directors December 19, 2019

Reportto:  President and Board

Prepared by: Susan Greer }’§\b

TOPIC:
RATES AND FEES SCHEDULED TO INCREASE AS OF 1/1/20

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only

ANALYSIS:

The District adopted a multi-year water rate structure on 2/21/18 which provides for automatic increases to
water rates every January, with rates already established. The District’s resolutions adopted for Water and
Wastewater Capacity Charges also provide for automatic increases each January based on the prior fiscal
year increase in the 20-City Construction Cost Index, which increased 1.8% last year.

The revised Rate and Fee Schedule, effective 1/1/20, is attached. Water rate increases are on the top of the

first page, increases to capacity charges are located in the Development Fees section of the schedule, and
located on the third page.

Regular water rate and capacity charge increases, which keep the District on pace as inflation increases
our costs, are an important strategy for ensuring that we can continue to deliver a high level of service
and are able to replace our infrastructure as needed.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Water rate increases are projected to increase revenues by $579,000 next year. Capacity charges are
development-driven, so it is difficult to project those revenues. Based on fiscal year 18/19’s meter
purchases, the capacity charge increases would increase revenues by a few thousand dollars only.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 16 of 105



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT
RATE and FEE SCHEDULE (effective 1/1/20)

Basic Monthly Fee

Private Fire Protection

Meter Size Flow Monthly Device Monthly
(G.P.M.) rate Size Rate
2" $ 18.36
3" and 1" 30&50 $ 34.43 3" $ 34.43
11" 100 $114.77 4" $ 57.38
2" 160 $ 183.63 6" $114.75
3" 300 ¢ 344.30 8" $183.60
Monthly Water Flow Charges
Meter Size Consumption Rate per unit
Amount
0 — 5 units $ 5.05
3" and 1” 6 — 10 units $6.15
11 - 20 units $7.25
21 + units $ 8.35
Larger Meters All Usage $6.20
Miscellaneous Charges
After Hours Turn on Fee $110.00
Broken Locking Device Fee $ 32.00

Delinquent Account Service Charge

10% on each original unpaid balance, plus .5% per
month for each subsequent month of delinquency

Document Charge — photocopies $ 0.25/page
DVD's $5.00
Guarantee Deposit $255.00
Lien Fees Filing - $47.00, Releasing - $74.00
Meter Accuracy Testing 3/4" and 1" - $158.00, larger at cost

Meter Damage

Minor/Broken Ball Valve - $150
Extensive Damage at actual cost

Meter Exchange Cost (on same parcel) Actual cost
Meter Reinstallation Charge $54.00
Meter Removal Charge $49.00
New Account Charge (formerly Turn on) $43.00
No Show for Missed Appointments $29.00
Other Services Actual cost

Permit to Supply Water for Domestic Irrigation
to Adjoining Same Ownership Parcel

34" or 1" meter - $368.40 per year

Reconnection Fee for Non-Payment

$ 25.00

| Returned Payment Charge

First - $25.00, Second and subsequent - $35.00

12.12.19

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 17 of 105




Sale of Water to Other Water Agencies

$9.53 per unit, $1,038 per acre foot
Plus direct labor, material and equipment costs

Standby Fees (billed through property taxes)

See attached schedule

Tag/Letter Fee

$ 10.00

Temporary Customer-Requested Turn Off/On

$33.00

JEMPORARY WATER SERVICE FEES

Guarantee Deposit — Temporary Service

Replacement cost - meter & appurtenances

Temporary Service Installation Charge

$95.00

Temporary Service Relocation Charge

$60.00

TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE BASIC MONTHLY FEES

Meter Size Flow Monthly
(G.P.M.) rate

%"and 1” | 30&50 $ 51.64

3" 300 $ 516.45

TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE MONTHLY WATER FLOW CHARGES

Meter Size

Consumption
Amount

Rate per unit

34" and 1"

0 — 5 units

$7.57

6 — 10 units

$9.22

11 - 20 units

$10.87

21 + units

$12.52

3"

All Usage

$9.30

DEVELOPMENT FEES

Fire Flow Test/Hydrant Testing

$217.00

Meter Quote

$19.00

Non-interference Letter

Actual cost

Plan Check Deposit

Determined by JBWD based on complexity

Refund Agreement Processing Fees

Initial preparation $190.00, each additional parcel
$35.00, Processing refund check $30.00

S1 Form Letter

Actual cost

Standard Front Footage Fee
(mainline or wastewater)

Most recently-calculated front footage
reimbursement (e.g. 2008 H Zane, $37 per foot) as
approved by Board of Directors

Static Pressure Testing $80.00

Variance Application Deposit Simple - $500.00 Complex - $2,500.00
W1 Form Letter Actual cost

Will Serve Letter $33.00

Meter Installation and Capacity Charges

12.12.19

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 18 of 105




Each meter installation will require payment of either tract or non-tract installation charge, depending
on location, plus the corresponding capacity charges.

Meter Size Tract Non-Tract Water Wastewater

Installation Installation Capacity Capacity
Charge Charge
(per EDU)
3" Meter $ 585.00 $1,911.00 $4,429.00 $6,551.00
1" Meter $ 669.00 $2,002.00 $7,379.00 $6,551.00
1 2" Meter Cost Cost $14,756.00 $6,551.00
2" Meter Cost Cost $23,613.00 $6,551.00
3" Meter Cost Cost $44,273.00 $6,551.00
Standby Rate Table Attached
12.12.19

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 19 of 105



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT
MEETING AGENDA REPORT

Meeting of the Board of Directors December 19, 2019

Reportto:  President and Board

Prepared by: Susan Greer %X

TOPIC:
18/19 AUDIT PRESENTATION BY FEDAK & BROWN, CPA’S

RECOMMENDATION:
Receive, accept and file.

ANALYSIS:

The 18/19 audit is complete and was presented to the Finance Committee in November which referred it to
the Board of Directors for approval. An Audit Manager from Fedak & Brown will be here to present the
audit. Due to the rescheduling of the meeting, a different audit manager, the one that performed the
secondary review of our audit, will be at the meeting to present. At Fedak & Brown, every audit is
routinely reviewed by a secondary audit manager.

The simplest read of the audit is on pages three through seven, Management’s Discussion and Analysis
section of the report, basically the executive summary.

Some of the year’s highlights are listed below:

Total revenues increased 7.8%, or $494K, including a 6.7% increase to operating revenues driven by water
rate increases and a 13.8% increase to non-operating revenues resulting substantially from increased
investment earnings related to both higher rates and the unspent CIRP loan proceeds that are generating
interest. In 17/18, total revenues increased 9.4%.

Total expenses increased 37.2%, or $2.2M. Significant increases were for Well 14 rehab expenses that
could not be capitalized, additional recharge water purchase compared to no recharge purchase in 17/18,
interest expense increase associated with CIRP loan, and the $606K depreciation expense increase for
various studies/reports, which are fully depreciated immediately upon capitalization. In 17/18, total
expenses increased 7.6%.

Total current assets, which includes cash or items easily converted to cash within one year, increased 4.5%

or $1.7M, related primarily to $963K increase to cash and $626K increase to inventory, both related to the
CIRP program.

Capital assets valued at $3.4M were added during the year including $1.7M for CIRP vehicles and
equipment, $606K for studies and reports (Districting, Cr6 Study, Emergency Response Plan, Strategic
Plan), $834K for transmission and distribution system improvements (Well 14 rehab and SCADA
improvements), and $225K for structures and improvements (shop remodel and office lighting
improvements.) These increases to depreciable assets were offset by $1.9M accumulated depreciation
expense, increased $617K from prior year.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 20 of 105



In a rare situation, the District’s net position decreased 3.4%, or $1.3M, driven by increases to expenses. In
17/18, net position increased 2.0%. The last decrease to net position occurred in 15/16 related to significant
increases to costs for water recharge and pumping plant repair and maintenance and elimination of recharge
grant funding. The District was embarking on the current rate study around this time, which was the plan to
address the issue. Another net position decrease is not seen again as far back as 06/07, 11 more years.

Also attached is the Management Report, which is the Auditors report to the Board of Directors. This
report addresses internal controls and many other issues. Internal controls are financial management
practices that are used to prevent misuse and misappropriation of assets, such as might occur through theft
or embezzlement. Internal controls may be detective, designed to find errors after they occur, such as
performing an inventory count. Internal controls may also be preventative, such as requiring secondary
approvals or passwords to perform specific tasks. Internal controls may also be corrective, designed to
address errors found as a result of detective internal controls. Training or reporting an error o a supervisor
are examples of corrective internal controls.

While internal control issues may present themselves during any audit, the audit is not specifically designed
to test or evaluate internal controls, and the Auditors do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal controls; that’s a different type of audit. However, during the audit they did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control to be material weaknesses.

Only six adjusting journal entries were required as a result of the audit. Four of those entries are for the
very complex pension liability reporting related to our CalPERS pension plan.

Audit compliance continues to increase each year, as evidenced by the discussion beginning on page 35 of
the audit with note number 16 regarding the GASB {Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statements) issued, but not yet effective, statements. GASB has issued new pronouncements, #84, #87,
#89, #90 and #91, which are effective in the next year or two, which again increase the audit requirements.

While each of the financial transactions occurring throughout the year ultimately gets rolled up into the
year-end financial report (audit), with each employee involved sharing a responsibility, Anne Roman
pulls together and manages the audit and gets 90% of the credit for this final report. My Finance Team
includes Anne, Autumn Rich and Gail Emery, and they are a competent and devoted group and I'm
grateful for their hard work. Again, there are no findings or internal control issues identified in the
18/19 audit and only six adjusting journal entries from the Auditors. Anne puts in countless extra
hours during audit season, which takes at least a third of the year now. Anne has exceptional attention
to detail, she takes a lot of pride in her work, and has a positive attitude that makes it all work. | hear
each year from our Audit Manager what outstanding work Anne does, and the District is lucky to have
her on the job.

This is the 32™ audit report that I am submitting to the Board of Directors, beginning in fiscal year
87/88. | take a lot of pride in presenting the audit report to the Board, our Financial Finale, so to speak,
but the results reflect the proficiency and talent of my Team and they, especially Anne, deserve the
credit. Next year, in preparation for her succession to the Director of Finance position after my

retirement at the end of 2020, | recommend that Anne prepare the staff report and submit the audit to
the Board.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A, information only

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 21 of 105



JOSIUA PASIN
ATER DISTRICT

Joshua Basin Water District

I

Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 22 of 105



JOSIUA BPASIN
ATEK DISTRICT

Joshua Basin Water District
Board of Directors as of June 30,2019

Elected/ Current
Name Title Appointed Term
Robert Johnson President Elected 12/16-12/20
Rebecca Unger Vice President Elected 12/18-12/22
Tom Floen Director Appointed 07/19-12/20
Geary Hund Director Elected 12/16-12/20
Mike Reynolds Director Elected 12/18-12/22

Joshua Basin Water District
Mark Ban, General Manager
61750 Chollita Road
Joshua Tree, California 92252-0675
(760) 366-8438 — www.jbwd.com

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 23 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 24 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Table of Contents

Table of Contents
Financial Section

Independent Auditor’s Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:
Statements of Net Position
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Schedule of the Pension Plan Contributions

Report on Internal Controls and Compliance
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

als

Page No.

8-9
10
11-12
13-38

39
40

41-42

Special Board of Directors Meeting

December 19, 2019 Page 25 of 105



Financial Section

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 26 of 105



Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 27 of 105



Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Joshua Tree, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Joshua Basin Water District (District),
which comprises the statements of net position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the fiscal years then ended, and the related notes 1o
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free [rom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Siates of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for
California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 28 of 105



Independent Auditor’s Report, continued

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Joshua Basin Water District as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the
respective changes in net position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 7 and the required supplementary information on pages 39 to
40 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accerdance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses Lo our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 18,
2019, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance. This report can be found on pages 4] and 42.

Fedak & Brown LL§P
Cypress, California
December 18, 2019

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 29 of 105



Joshuoa Basin Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance
of the Joshua Basin Water District (District) provides an introduction to the financial statements of the
District for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here with additional information that we have furnished in the accompanying basic
financial statements and related notes, which lollow this section.

Financial Highlights

* The District’s net position decreased 3.41% or $1,290,843 to $36,563,587. In fiscal year 2018,
the District’s net position increased 1.99% or $739,437 10 $37,854,430.

* The District’s total revenues increased 7.81% or $494,257 to $6,819,130. In fiscal year 2018, the
District’s total revenues increased 9.43% or $544,946 to $6,324,873.

* The District’s total expenses increased 37.22% or $2,244,744 10 $8,276,036. In fiscal year 2018,
the District’s total expenses increased 7.56% or $423,696 to $6,031,292.

Using This Financial Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statements of Net Pasition, Statements
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Statements of Cash Flows provide information
about the activities and performance of the District using accounting methods similar to those used by
private sector companies.

The Statements of Net Position includes all of the District’s investments in resources (assets) and deferred
outflows of resources, obligations to creditors (liabilities) and deferred inflows of resources. It also
provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the District and
assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. All of the current year’s revenue and
expenses are accounted for in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. This
statement measures the success of the District’s operations over the past year and can be used to
determine if the District has successfully recovered all of its costs through its rates and other charges. This
statement can also be used to evaluate profitability and credit worthiness. The final required financial
statement is the Statements of Cash Flows, which provides information about the District’s cash receipts
and cash payments during the reporting period. The Statements of Cash Flows reporis cash receipts, cash
payments and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing. non-capital financing, and capital
and related financing activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from,
what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.

Financial Analysis of the District

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or
worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the District in a way that helps
answer this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
method used by most private sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken
into account regardless of when the cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the District’s nret position and changes in them. You can think of the
District’s net position — the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities
plus deferred inflows of resources —~ as one way to measure the District’s financial health, or financial
position. Qver time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are one indicator of whether its
Jinancial health is improving or deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial
factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth, zoning and new or changed
government legislation, such as changes in Federal and State water quality standards.

L)

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 30 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial
statements can be found on pages 13 through 38.

Statements of Net Position

Condenscd Statements of Net Position

2019 2018 Change 2017 Change
Assels:
Current assels § 13010870 11,296,670 1,714,200 10808 287 488383
Non-current asscls 596,843 671,494 (74611) 6,104 (74,610}
Capital assets, nel 20.969.302 29.737.371 231931 29,612,924 124,447
Total assets 43577055 41,703,533 1.871.520 41,167,313 538220
Deferred outflows ol resources 430690 472,782 (47.092) 46,356 31426
Liahilities:
Current lanbilities 1,150,138 784266 365872 1,003,659 (219393}
Non-current liabilities 6,294,020 3.531.815 2,762,205 3451436 80.379
Total liabilities 7444138 4316081 3.128077 4455003 {138.014)
Deferred inflows of resources - 12.806 (12.806) 43,583 (30.777)
Net position:
Net investment in capital sscis 24015432 26717030 (2,701,598} 26535924 181,106
Restricied 4060706 2887542 1,173,164 2734640 132,902
Unrestricted 8487449 8.249.8338 237591 7.844.429 405429
Total nct position $  36.563.587 37.854.430 {1,150,843) 37.114.993 739437

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the District, assets plus deferred outflows of resources of the District exceeded
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $36,563,587 and $37,854,430, as of June 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

Compared to prior year, net position of the District decreased 3.41% or $1,290,843. The District’s total
net position is made up of three components: (1) net investment of capital assets, (2) restricted net
position and (2) unrestricted net position.

By far the largest portion of the District’s net position (68.68% and 70.58% as of June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively} reflects the District’s net investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) less
any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets
to provide services to customers within the District’s service area; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending.

At the end of fiscal years 2019 and 20(8, the District showed a positive balance in its unrestricied net
position of $8,487,449 and $8,249,858, respectively, which may be utilized in future years. See note 14
for further information.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 31 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Condensed State ments of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2019 2018 Change 2017 Change
Revenue:
Operatmg revenue $ 5646298 5294374 351924 4903804 390,570
Non-operating revenue 1.172.832 1.030.499 142,333 876.123 154376
Tolal revenue 6.819.130 6,324 873 464257 5779927 544,946
Expense:
Operating espense 5,864,131 4284013 1580116 3 880431 403 584
Depreciation 1,846,558 1235914 610644 1212568 23346
Non-operating expense 565347 511.363 53984 514,597 {3234}
Total expense 8276036 6031292 2.244 744 5.607.556 423.696
Netincome (loss) before capital
contribulions (1.456.906) 293,581 (1.750487) 172331 121350
Capital contributions 166.063 45856 (279.793) 394814 51.042
Change i nel position (1.290.843) 739437 (2.030,.280) 567,145 172292
Net position, be ginning of pe riod 37.854430 37.114.993 739437 36.547.848 567145
Net position, ¢nd of pe riod § 36563587 37.851.430 (1.250.843) 37.114.993 7319437

Net position decreased 3.41% or $1,290,843 to $36,563,587, as a result of ongoing operations. In fiscal
year 2018, the District’s net position increased 1.99% or $739,437 to $37,854,430, as a result of ongoing
operations.

Total revenues increased 7.81% or $494,257 to $6,819,130. Operating revenues increased 6.65% or
$351,924, primarily due to increases in water consumption sales of $293,072, and water service charges
of $171,400. Non-operating revenue increased 13.81% or $142,333, primarily due to investment earnings
of $170,650 and property tax revenue of $31,641. In fiscal year 2018, the District’s total revenues
increased 9.43% or $544,946 to $6,324,873. Operating revenues increased 7.96% or $390.570, primarily
due to increases in water consumption sales of $251,556, and water service charges of $64,502. Non-
operating revenue increased 17.62% or $154,376, primarily due to investment earnings of $77,744 and
HDMC operations revenue of $47,119.

Total capital contributions decreased 62.75% or $279,793 to $166,063. The decrease in capital
contributions was primarily due to decreases of $66,360 in water capacity charges and $48,538 in grant
revenue from the State. In fiscal year 2018, capital contributions increased 12.93% or $51,042 to

$445,856. The increase in capital contributions was primarily due to an increase in water capacity charges
of $63,808.

Total expenses increased by 37.22% or $2,244,744 10 $8,276,036. Operating expense increased 36.88%
or $1,580,116, primarily due to increases of $1,155,591 in pumping production and treatment, and
$353,824 in general and administrative. Non-operating expense increased 10.56% or $53,984, primarily
due an increase of $86,780 in interest expense. in fiscal year 2018, total expenses increased by 7.56% or
$423,696 10 $6,031,292. Operating expense increased 10.40% or $403,584, primarily due 1o increases of
$269,206 in general and administrative, and $218,108 in transmission and distribution. Non-operating
expense decreased 0.63% or $3,234.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 32 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District

Muanagement’s Discussion and Analysis, contined
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Capital Asset Administration

Changes in capital asset for 2019, were as follows:

Balance Trans fees! Balance
2018 Additions Deletions 2019
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assels $ 2,126,625 2462483 {3,800,682) 779426
Depreciable assets 54494316 3432482 - 57.926,798
Accumulied depreciation {26.883.570) (1,853.352) - {28.736.922}
Total capial asscts, net $ 29737371 4,041,613 {3.800.682) 29,969,302

Changes in capital asset for 2018, were as follows:

Balance Translers/ Balance
2017 Additions Deletions 2018
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets $ 1401019 1,284,857 {539.251) 2,126.625
Depreciable assels 54,032,325 6-40,284 (178,293) 54,494,316
Accumulated depreciation {23.820.420) {1.236.019) 172.869 (26.883.570)
Total capital assuls. net 5 29612924 689.122 {564.675) 20.737.371

At the end of fiscal year 2019 and 2018, the District’s capital assets amounted to $29,969,302 and
$29,737,37] (net of accumulated depreciation), respectively. These capital assets include land,
transmission and distribution systems, buildings, equipment, vehicles and construction-in-process. See
note 9 to the basic financial statements for further detailed information on the District’s capital assets.

Delt Administration

Changes in long-term debt for 2019, were as follows:

Balance Balance
2018 Additions Payments 2019
Long-term debi:
Bonds payable b 2,970,000 - (111,000) 2,859,000
Notes payvable - 3,010,000 - 3,0010000
Loans payablk: 50341 34.529 - 84.870
Total long-term debt $ 3.020.341 3.044.529 {111.000) 5.953.870

Changes in long-term debt for 2018, were as follows:

Balance Balance
2087 Additions Payments 2018
Long-term debi:
Bonds payable $ 3,077,000 - {107,000) 2,970,000
Loans payablke - 50.341 - 50341
Total long-term debi b 3.077.000 50.341 ( 107,000 3,020341

In 2019, long-term debt increased by $2,933,529, primarily due to additions to long-term debt of
$3,044,529, which was offset by an $111,000 decrease due to principal payments. In 2018, long-term debt
decreased by $56,659, primarily due to additions to long-term debt of $50,341, which was offset by a
$107,000 decreased due to principal payments.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 33 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continned
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position

Management is unaware of any conditions which could have a significant impact on the District’s current
financial position, net position or operating results based on past, present and future events.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s present users, including funding sources,
customers, stakeholders and other interested parties with a general overview of the District’s finances and
to demonstrate the District’s accountability with an overview of the District’s financial operations and
financial condition. Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or
wish to request additional financial information, please contact the District’s Assistant General
Manager/Controller, Susan Greer at Joshua Basin Water District, 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree,
California, 92232 or (760) 366-8438.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 34 of 105



Basic Financial Statements

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 35 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 7,267,826 7,539,542
Cash and cash cquivalents - restricted (note 2) 3,347,928 2112718
Accrued interest receivable 45,164 38,568
Accrued interest receivable - restricted 30,050 16,360
Accounts receivable — water sales and services, net (note 3) 1,149,143 1,061,836
Property taxes receivable 12,509 23,433
Special assessments receivable - restricted 85,845 86,970
Grants receivable (note 5) 79,763 63,961
Loan receivable (note 4) 84,870 50,341
Accounts receivable — other 79,490 102,014
Materials and supplies inventory 746,137 119,752
Prepaid expenses and other deposils 82,145 81,175
Total current assets 13.010.870 11,296,670
Non-current assets:
Note receivable — restricted (note 6) 596,883 671,494
Capital assets — not being depreciated (note 9) 779426 2,126,625
Capital assets, net — being deprecinted (note 9) 29.189.876 27,610,746
Total non-current assets 30,566,185 30,408,865
Tota) assets 43.577,055 41,705.535
Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred pension outflows (note 12) 430,690 477,782
Total deferred outflows of resources g 430,690 477,782

Continued on next puge

See accompanying notes to the basic financial stalements

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 36 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Statements of Net Position, continued
June 30,2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Current linbilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 317,034 256,558
Accrued wages and related payables 53916 50,997
Customer deposits and uncarned revenuc 331,182 277,253
Accrued interest payable 134,630 44,550
Long-termn liabilitics — due within one year:
Compensated absences (note 10) 45,370 43,908
Noles payable (note 11) 152,006 -
Bonds payable (note 11} 116,000 111.000
Total current liabilitics 1,150,138 784.266
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term liabilitics — due in more than one year:
Compensated abscnces (note 10) 136,110 131,724
Noles payable (note 11) 2857994 -
Bonds payable (notc 11} 2,743,000 2,859,000
Loans payable (note 11) 84,870 50,341
Net pension lability (note 12) 472.046 490,750
Total non-current liabilities 6.294,020 3.531.815
Total liabilities 7.444,158 4.316,081
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred pension inflows (note 12) - 12.806
Total deferred inflows of resources - 12.806
Net position: {note 14)
Net investment in capital assels 24015432 26,717,030
Restricted 4,060,706 2,887,542
Unrestricted 8.487.449 8.249.858
Total net position $ 36,563,587 37.854.,430

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 37 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Operating revenues:
Water consumption sales 3 2,309,364 2,016,292
Water service charges 1,964,922 1,793,522
Standby service charges 1,209,566 1,251,065
Other charges for services 162446 233,495
Total operating revenues 5,646,298 5,294 374
Operating cxpenses:
Pumping, production and treatment 2,156,542 1,000,951
Transmission and distribution 959,283 949,091
Customer service 501,953 441,444
General and administrative 2,246,353 1.892,529
Total operating expenses 5,864,131 4284015
Operating income before depreciation expense (217,833) 1,010,359
Depreciation expense {1,846,558) (1,235914)
Operating loss {2.064,391) (225,555)
Non-operating revenue (expense):
Property taxes 473,043 441,402
Special assessments for debt service 268,331 275,638
Investment earnings 304,094 133,444
Morongo Basin pipeline (note 13) (219,880) (219,594)
Interest expense (221,207) (134,427)
Debt administration charges (68,087) (11,142)
Property tax administration charge (1,210) (1,104)
HDMC operations revenue (note 7) 127,364 180,015
HDMC project - District expense {note 7) (97.886) (145,749)
Other non-operating revenues (expenses), net 42923 653
Total non-operating revenue, net 607485 519,136
Net income before capital contributions (1.456.906) 203,581
Capital contributions:
Water capacity charges 65,670 132,030
Wastewater capacity charges 19,141 36,311
State capital grant 77552 126,091
Capital contributions - 145,787
Local capital grant —= MWA 3.700 5,637
"Total capitat contributions 166,063 445.856
Change in net position (1,290,843) 739437
Net position, beginning of period 37,854,430 37,114,993
Net position, end of period 5 36,563,587 37,854,430

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

10

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 38 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activitices:
Cash receipts from customers for water sales and services $ 5,635,444 5,149,034
Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages (2,222,004) (3,055,618)
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services (4,184,657) (1,278,957)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (771217) 814,459
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Property taxes 414,670 429913
Morongo Basin pipeline (219,880) (219,594)
Other non-operating expenses, net 42923 653
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 237,713 210972
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (2,078.489) (1,360,361)
HDMC project expense 20478 34,266
Captital contributions 88,511 319,765
Payments received for note receivable 74611 74,610
Proceeds from capital grants 61,750 401,700
Loan receivable from State Revolving Fund (34,529) (50,341)
Special assessments for debt service 269456 278,154
Principal received (paid) from debt issuance 2,933,529 (56,659)
Interest paid on debt (131,127} (136,032)
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related
financing activities 1.213,190 (494,898)
Cash flows from investing activitics;
Investment earnings 283,808 104,825
Net cash provided by investing activities 283.808 104,825
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 963,494 635,358
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 9,652,260 9,016,902
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 8 10,615,754 9,652,260

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the statements of net position:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,267,826 7,539,542
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 3,347,928 2,112,718
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 10,615,754 9,652,260

Continued on next page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

I

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 39 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Statements of Cash Flows, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
ope rating activities:
Operating loss s (2.064,391) (225,555)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,846,558 1,235,914
Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources:
(Increase) decrease in assets and deferred outflows of resources:
Accounts receivable — water sales and services, net (87,307) (50,680)
Accounts receivable — other 22,524 (27.473)
Materials and supplies inventory (626,383) 30,110
Prepaid expenses and other deposits (970) (4,902)
Deferred outflows of resources 47,092 (31,420)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 60476 (177,398)
Accrued wages and related payables 2919 12,765
Customer deposits and unearned revenue 53,929 (67,185)
Compensated absences 5,848 40,120
Net pension liability (18,704) 110,948
Deferred inflows of resources {12,806) (30,777
Tatal adjustments 1,293,174 1,040,014
Net cash provided by operating activities $ (771.217) 314,459

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 40 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Sigaificant Accounting Policies
A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity

The Joshua Basin Water District (District) was organized in January 1963, under provisions of Division
12 of the Water Code of the State of California. The purpose of the District is to finance, construct,
operate and maintain a water system and wastewater system to serve properties within the District's
boundaries. The District services approximately 96 square miles in the unincorporated area of Joshua
Tree, located in the Morongo Basin of San Bernardine County. The District is governed by a Board of
Directors made up of five members elected by the qualified voters in the District.

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Statements No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity. The District is the primary
governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board that is elected by the
citizens in a general popular election. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the
elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The District is financially
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and: 1) It is able to
impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.

The District normally conducts two monthly general meetings of the Board of Directors which are held on
the first and third Wednesdays of the month in the District’s office.

The Joshua Basin Water District Copper Mountain Mesa Assessment District (Assessment District) was
formed in 1996 to finance the improvements and construction of the potable water system facilities,
including pipelines, booster pumping station, water storage reservoir and the necessary appurtenances.
The bonds were sold to the United States Department of Agriculture, who is the sole bondholder. The
District’s directors serve as directors of the Assessment District; the District’s General Manager serves as
its executive officer. The assets and liabilities of the Assessment District are blended with those of the
District in the financial statements.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District
is that the cost of providing water to its service area on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges (water sales), capital grants and similar funding. Revenues and expenses
are recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period
in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place.

Operating revenues and expenses, such as water sales and water purchases, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which
each party receives and gives up essentially equal value. Management, administration and depreciation
expenses are also considered operating expenses. Other revenues and expenses not included in the above
categories are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. Non-operating revenues and expenses,
such as grant funding, investment income and interest expense, result from non-exchange transactions, in
which the District gives (receives) value without directly (giving) value in exchange.

C. Financial Reporting

The District’s basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as applied to enterprise funds. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

13

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 41 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
C. Financial Reporting, continued

The District solely operates as a special-purpose government which means it is only engaged in business-
type activities; accordingly, activities are reported in the District’s proprietary fund.

The District has adopted the following GASB pronouncements in the current year:

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 83

In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83 — Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. This
Statement (1) addresses accounting and financial reporting for cerlain asset retirement obligations
(AROs), (2) establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a
corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs, (3) requires that recognition occur when the
liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable, (4) requires the measurement of an ARO to be based
on the best estimate of the current value of outlays expected to be incurred, (5) requires the current value
of a government’s AROs to be adjusted for the effects of general inflation or deflation at least annually,
and (6) requires disclosure of information about the nature of a government’s AROs, the methods and
assumptions used for the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the
associated tangible capital assets.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning afier June 15, 2018.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 88

In April 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 88 — Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including
Dircct Borrowings and Direct Placements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the
information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct
borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when
disclosing information related to debi.

This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as a liability that
arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assels that may be used in lieu of cash) in one or
more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established.

This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to
financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms
specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences,
significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration
clauses,

For notes to financial statements related to debt, this Statement also requires that existing and additional
information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.
Earlier application is encouraged.

14

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 42 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position

1. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statemenis and the reported changes in net position during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Substantially all of the District’s cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

3. Investments and Investment Policy

The District has adopted an investment policy as written in Article 8 of the District’s administration
code. Any surplus funds or funds held for any length of time for special projects shall only be
invested with reputable institutions.

The District’s investment policy authorizes investments in Certificates-of-deposit and the California
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The District’s investment policy does contain specific
provisions intended 1o limit its exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, custodial risk, and
concentration of credit risk.

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for
that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or
losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments.

4. Fair Value Measurements

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles.

The hierarchy is based on valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset, as follows:
* Level | - Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

e Level 2 - Valuation is based on directly observable and indirectly observable inputs. These
inputs are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data through
correlation or market-corroborated inputs. The concept of market-corroborated inputs
incorporates observable market data such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable
at commonly quoted intervals,

¢ Level 3 - Valuation is based on unobservable inputs where assumptions are made based on
factors such as prepayment rates, probability of defaults, loss severity and other assumptions
that are internally generated and cannot be observed in the market.

5. Accounts Reccivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. When management
deems customer accounts uncollectible, the District uses the allowance method for the reservation and
write-off of those accounts.

13

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 43 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(I) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued
6. Property Taxes and Assessments

The San Bernardino County Assessor’s Office assesses all real and personal property within the
County each year. The San Bernardino County Tax Collector’s Offices bills and collects the District's
share of property taxes and assessments. The San Bernardino County Treasurer's Office remits
cutrent and delinquent property tax collections to the District throughout the year. Property tax in
California is levied in accordance with Article 13A of the State Constitution at one percent (1%) of
countywide assessed valuations.

Property taxes receivable at year-end are related to property taxes collected by the San Bernardino
County which have not been credited to the District's cash balance as of June 30. The property tax
calendar is as follows:

Lien date March 1

Levy date July 1

Due dates November T and March |
Collection dates December 10 and April 10

7. Materials and Supplies Inventory

Materials and supplies inventory consists primarily of water meters, pipe and pipefittings for
construction and repair to the District’s water transmission and distribution system. Inventory is
valued at cost using the FIFO method. Inventory items are charged to expense at the time that
individual items are withdrawn from inventory or consumed.

8. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements.

9. Capital Assets

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Donated assets are recorded at estimated
fair market value at the date of donation. Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any gains or
losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows:

* Transmission and distribution system — 3 to 50 years
e Structures and improvements — 10 1o 30 years
Vehicles and large equipment — 5 to 10 years

Office furniture and equipment — 5 to 10 years
Water rights — 25 years

Wastewater system in development — 15 years

e Surveys and plans — 2 to 5 years

10. Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of resources that is applicable to future
periods.

11. Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of resources that is applicable to future
periods.

16

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 44 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continuned
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Positien, continued
12. Compensated Absences

The District’s policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned vacation up to a total of 400 hours,
with amounts exceeding the limit being paid out as part of the employee’s regular compensation.
Upon termination of employment, employees are paid all unused vacation and forfeit any unused sick
time,

13. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensjons, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and addition to/deduction
from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

e Valuation Date: June 30, 2017
¢ Measuremens Date: June 30, 2018
e Measurement Period: July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018

14. Net Position
The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as follows:

* Investment in Capital Assets — Investment in capital assets, net of related debt consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, and reduced by outstanding
balances of any debt, or other long-term borrowings that are atiributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.

* Restricted — Restricted consists of assets that have restrictions placed upon their use by
external constraints imposed either by creditors (debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
laws and regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through enabling
legislation.

s Unrestricted — Unrestricted consists of the net amount of assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the
determination of the net investment in capital assets or restricted component of net position.

15. Water Sales and Services

Water sales are billed on a monthly cyclical basis and recognize the respective revenues when they
are earned.

16, Capital Contributions

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by property
owners, granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital expenditures
or capacity commiiment.

17. Reelassification

The District has reclassified certain prior year information to conform to current year presentation.

17

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 45 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilitics, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued

18. Budgetary Policies

The District adopts an annual non-appropriated budget for planning, control, and evaluation purposes.
Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparisons of actual revenues and expenses with
planned revenues and expenses for the period. Encumbrance accounting is not used to account for
commitments related to unperformed contracts for construction and services.

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and investments as of June 30 are classified in the Statement of Net Position as follows:

2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 8 7,267,826 7,539,542
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 3.347,928 2,112,718
Total cash and investments 5 10,615,754 9,652,260

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30 consist of the following:

2019 2018
Cash on hand 5 2,469 2,300
Deposits held with financial institutions 407,603 354,613

Deposits held with the California Local Agency Investment Fund:

Unrestricted 6,857,754 7,182,627
Restricted 3.347.928 2112718
Subtotal 10,203,682 0,205 345
Total cash and investments 5 10,615,754 9,652,260

As of June 30, the District’s authorized deposits had the following maturities:

2019 2018

Deposits held with the California Local Agency Investment Fund 173 days 193 days

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 46 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investiment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in accordance with the
California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy,
where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity OfPortfolio in One Issucr
Local Agency Bonds 3 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
State Obligations - CA and Others 5 years None None
CA Local Agency Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Obligations 5 years Nane None
Negotiable Centificates of Deposit 3 yvears 30% None
Collateralize Bank Deposils 5 vears None None
Corporate debt - Short and Long Term 3 years None None
. 40% ol the
Commercial Paper - Pooled Funds 270 days .
District's None
Commercial Paper - Non-Pooled Funds 270 days money
Repurchase agreements I year None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None

Investment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local District Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
the California Government Code Section 16429 and is under the management of the Treasurer of the State
of California with oversight provided by the Local Agency Investment Advisory Board. The fair value of
the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts
based upon the Disttict’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio
{in relation to the amortized cost of that portiolic). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the
accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Bank balances
are secured by the pledging of a pool of eligible securities 1o collateralize the District’s deposits with the
bank in accordance with the Code.

District’s deposit and withdrawal restrictions and limitations are as follows:

e Same day transaction processing occurs for orders received before 10:00 a.m.

e Next day transactions processing occurs for orders received after 10:00 a.m.

¢ Maximum limit of |5 transactions {combination of deposits and withdrawals) per month.
Minimum transaction amount requirement of $5,000, in increments of $1,000 dollars.

*  Withdrawals of $10,000,000 or more require 24 hours advance.

*  Prior to funds transfer, an authorized person must call LAIF for verbal authorization.

19

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 47 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued
Interest Rute Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate
risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows
from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio matures, or comes close to maturity evenly over time, as
necessary to provide requirements for cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits, or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk
that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) 10 a transaction, a government will
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party.

With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only o direct investments in
marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in
securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).

The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collatera)
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount
deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public
deposits. Of the bank balances, up to $250,000 is federally insured and the remaining balance is
collateralized in accordance with the Code: however. the collateralized securities are not held in the
District’s name.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District’s investment policy contains various limitations on the amounts that can be invested in any
one governmental agency or non-governmental issuer as stipulated by the California Government Code,
The District’s deposit portfolio with governmental agencies, LAIF, is 87% and 96% as of June 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively of the District’s tolal depository and investment portfolio. There were no
investments in any one non-governmental issuer that represent 5% or more of the District's total
investments.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 48 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018
(3) Accounts Receivable — Water Sales and Services, net

The balance at June 30 consists of the following:

2019 2018
Accounts receivable — water sakes  § 529975 592,847
Unbilled water sales receivables 376,635 351,488
Standby charges receivables 303,601 298,339
Property licns 100,970 -
Allowance for doubtful accounts {162,038) (180.838)
Tolal accounts receivable, net s 1.149.143 1.061.836

{(4) Loan Reccivable

On December 17, 2015, the District was awarded a federal pass through grant funding from the State
Water Resources Control Board (State) in the form of Drinking Water State Revolving Fund financing.
The financing is designed to assist the District in financing the planning regarding the possible
implementation of the Chromium VI Remediation Project. The total project cost is estimated to be
$2,016,000, consisting of $1,516,000 in state revolving fund and $500,000 in grant fund (see Note 5). As
of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the receivable balance from the State amounted to $84,870 and $50,341,
respectively.

{5) Grant Receivable

The balance at June 30 consists of the following:

2019 2018
State Water Resources Control Board § 75,885 63,961
Prop 84 IRWM Grant 3,878 -
Total accounts receivable, net $ 79,763 63.961

On December 17, 2015, the District was awarded with a state pass through grant funding from the State
Water Resources Control Board (State). The State provides funding pursuant from the California Health
and Safety Code to assist the District in planning regarding the possible implementation of the Chromium
V1 Remediation Project. The agreement provides for a total funding of $2,016,000, consisting of
$500,000 in grant fund and $1,516,000 in state revolving fund (see Note 4). As of June 30, 2019 and
2018, the grant receivable balance from the State amounted to $79,763 and $63,961, respectively and is
included as part of grants receivable.

On March 10, 2013, Mojave Water Agency and the State of California, Department of Water Resources,
entered into a grant agreement lo assist in financing projects associated with the Regional Water
Management Plan Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (IRWMP) pursuant to Chapter 8 of
Division 26.5 of the California Water Code. Funding is provided from the Safe Drinking Water, Water
Quality and Supply, Flood Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006. The grant agreement
consists of three separate IRWMP projecis; for Mojave Water Agency, Joshua Basin Water District and
Hi-Desert Water District. The grant agreement provides for a total grant amount of $8,000,000. The
District used their §3,000,000 grant funding for the Recharge Project, which was completed in 2014. The
District was required to wait until all projects associated with the grant agreement were completed in
order to apply for release of reiention held by the state. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the receivable
balance from DWR amounted to $3,878 and $0 respectively and is included as part of grants receivable.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 49 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(6) Note Receivable — Hi-Desert Medical Center

On July 1, 2012, the District executed a note receivable with the Hi-Desert Medical Center for $1 ,119,156
for capacity charges due for sanitary sewer service to the Hi-Desert Medical Center Wastewater
Treatment Plant. The note is to be repaid over a 15-year period ($74,610 principal per year) with interest
charged at the quarterly LAIF interest earnings rate. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the note principal
balance remaining was $596,883 and $671,494, respectively. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, accrued interest
receivable on the note was $14,683 and $9,642, respectively and is included as part of the accrued interest
receivable balance in the statements of net position.

(7) Hi-Desert Medical Center Project

In fiscal year 2013, the District was engaged by the Hi-Desert Medical Center (HDMC) to construct, own
and operate the HDMC's Wastewater Treatment Plant (Plant). Please see note 6 for more details of the
District’s agreement with HDMC. During the construction phase, HDMC made capital contributions to
the District for the construction of the Wastewater Treatment Plant in the amount of $2,901,551. Upon
completion, it was agreed that HDMC would continue to own the Plant, while the District would be
contracted to operate and maintain the Plant. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. the
District incurred $97,886 and $145,749, respectively, in reimbursable costs towards the project.

(8) Deferred Compensation Savings Plan

For the benefit of its employees, the District participates in a 457 Deferred Compensation Program
(Program). The purpose of this Program is to provide deferred compensation for public employees that
elect to participate in the Program. Generally, eligible employees may defer receipt of a portion of their
salary until termination, retirement, death or unforesceable emergency. Until the funds are paid or
otherwise made available to the employee, the employee is not obligated to report the deferred salary for
income tax purposes.

Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the
participants. Accordingly, the District is in compliance with this legislation. Therefore, these assels are
not the legal property of the District, and are not subject to claims of the District’s general creditors. At
June 30, 2019 and 2018, the market value of all plan assets held in trust by ICMA-RC was $714,353 and
$616,393, respectively.

The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. Since the District has little administrative
involvement and does not perform the investing function for this plan, the assets and related liabilities are
not shown on the statement of net position.

(2=
bt

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 50 of 105



®

Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2019, were as follows:

Joshua Basin Water District

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Capital Asscts

Non-depreciable assets:

Land and land rights
Construction-in-process

Total non-depreciable assets

Depreciable assets:

Transmission and distribution system
Recharge facilitics

Structures and improvements
Vehicles and large equipment
Office furniture and equipment
Waler rights

Wastewaler system in development
Studics and reports

Tolal depreciable assets

Accumulated depreciation:

Transmission and distribution mains
Recharge factlities

Structures and improvements
Vehicles and large equipment
Office furniture and equipment
Waler rights

Wastewater system in development
Studics and reports

Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable assets, net

Total capital assets, net

$

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2018 Transfers Transfers 2019
516,019 - - 516,019
1,610.606 2462483 (3.809,682) 263407
2.126.625 2462483 (3.809.682) 779426
41,044,351 83:4.054 98,222 41,976,627
9,108.029 - - 9.108.029
I.118.796 224.569 - 1.343.365
1,446,685 1,714,863 - 3.161,548
1.101.475 46,349 (98.222) 1.049.602
22419 - - 22419
632.561 605.852 - 1.258413
54494316 31425.687 - 57.920.003
(23.232,809) (811,772) (Z1.281) (24.065,922)
(653,396) (182,169) - (835,565)
(499,600) (33,086) - (532,686)
(935.967) (126,047) - (1.062,014)
(886,758) (87.631) 21,281 (953,108)
(22419) - - {22419
(632.561) (605.852) - {1.258413)
(26.883.570) { [.846.557) - {28.730,127)
27610.746 1.3579.130 - 29.189.876
29.737.371 4041613 (3.809.682) 29.969.302

Major depreciable capital assets additions during the fiscal year ended 2019, include upgrades and
extensions of the District’s water transmission and distribution systems of $834,054, purchases of
structures and improvements of $224,569, purchases of vehicles and large equipment of $1,714,863,
purchases of office fumiture and equipment of $46,349, and capital improvement plans related to surveys
and plans of $605,852. During the year, the District re-classed $98,222 of office furniture and equipment
to transmission and distribution systems.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 51 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(9) Capital Assets, continued

Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2018, were as follows:

Balance Deletions/ Balance
2017 Additions/ Transfers 2018
Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights L 516,019 - 516,019
Construction-m-process 883,000 1,284,857 (559,251) 1,610,606
Total non-depreciable assels 1.401.019 1.284.857 (359.251) 2.126.625
Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution system 40,861,701 182,650 - 41,044,351
Recharge facilities 9,108,029 - - 9,108,029
Structures and improvements 959,507 159289 - 1,118,796
Vehicks and birge equipment 1,360,220 91206 (4,741) 1,446,685
Office furniture and equipment 1.115.289 159,758 (173,352) 1L,101.475
Waler rights - - - -
Wastewaler system in development 22419 - - 22419
Studies and reports 603,160 47,401 - 632.501
Total depreciable assets 54.032.325 640284 (178.293) 54494316
Accumulated depreciation:
Transmission and distribution mains (22,377,693) (835,176) - (23,232,869}
Recharge facilities 471,227 (182,169) - {633,396}
Structures and inprovements (470,632) {28.968) - {499,600}
Vehicles and large equipment (834,853) (101.217) 103 (933,967}
Office furniture and equipment {1,038,434) (21,088) 172,764 (886.758)
Water rights - - - -
Wastewater systems in development (22419) - - (22419)
Studies and reports {603.160) {47400 - {652,561}
Total accumulated depreciation {25,820.420) (1.236,019) 172,869 (26,883,570)
Tolal depreciabke asscls, net 28211905 {395,735) {3.424) 27610746
Total capital asscts, net $ 29612924 689,122 (564,675} 29,737.371

Major depreciable capital assets additions during the fiscal year ended 2018, include upgrades and
extensions of the District’s water transmission and distribution systems of $182,650, purchases of
structures and improvements of $159,289, purchases of vehicles and large equipment of $91,206,
purchases of office furniture and equipment of $159,738, and capital improvement plans related to
surveys and plans of $47,401. During the year, the District wrote-off office fumiture and equipment
amounting to $173,552 related to vehicles and large equipment, surveys and plans and office, furniture

and equipment.

Canstruction-In-Process

The District is involved in construction projects throughout the year. Once completed, projects are
capitalized and depreciated over the life of the asset.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 52 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(9) Capital Assets, continued
Construction-In-Process

AL June 30, 2019 and 2018, the balance of construction-in-process was $263,407 and $1,610,606,
respectively.

Construction-in-process consisted of the following projects:

Project Description 2019 2018
Chromium study 5 - 388979
Well 14 Rehabilitation - 1,098,448
Rate and fee study 41,993 -
Saddleback design and install 88,210 -
Various other minor projects = $100,000 132.504 123,179
Tolal construction-in-process $ 263,407 1,610,606

{(10) Compensated Abscences

The changes to compensated absences for 2019, were as follows:

Balance Balance Due within Due in more
2018 Eamed Taken 2019 One Year than one year
5 175,632 281.769 (275921 181,480 45,370 136,110

The changes to compensated absences for 2018, were as follows:

Balance Balance Due within Due in more
2017 Eamed Taken 2018 One Year than one year
$ 135.512 296214 (256.,094) 175,632 43.908 131.724

(11) Long-Term Debt

Changes in long-term debt amounts 2019 were as follows:

Balance Balance Current
2018 Additions Payments 2019 Portion
Long-term det:
Bonds payable:
1996 Bonds b 2970000 - (111,000) 2,859,000 116,000
Note payable:
Installment Sake #18-012 - 3.010,000 - 3,010,000 152,006
Loans payable:
State Revolving Fund Loan 30341 34529 - 84870 -
Total fong-lerm debt $ 3020341 3.044.529 (111,000 3.953.870 268,006
25

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 53 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
(11) Long-Term Debt, continued

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2018 were as follows:

Balance Balance Current
2017 Additions Payments 2018 Partion
Long-term debt:
Bonds payable:
1996 Bonds $ 3.077.000 - (107,000) 2,970,000 111000
Loans payable:
State Revolving Fund Loan - 50341 - 50.341 -
Total long-term debt L) 3.077.000 50341 (107.000) 3.020.341 111.000

1996 Limited Obtigation Improvement Bonds

In March 1996, the District authorized the issuance of $4,551,389 in Copper Mountain Mesa limited
obligation improvement bonds pursuant to the provisions of the Municipal Improvement Act of 1913. The
bonds are payable solely from and secured solely by special assessments on property parcels and the
amounts held by the District. The District is not obligated to, but may in its sole discretion, advance
available surplus funds from the District treasury. The bonds bear interest at 4.5% per annum.

Principal and interest are payable on March 2™ and September 2" of each year as follows:

Year Principal Interest Tatal
2020 % 116,000 126,045 242,045
2021 121,000 120,713 241,713
2022 127,000 115,133 242,133
2023 132,000 109,305 241,305
2024 138,000 103.230 241,230

2025-2029 788,000 415,033 1,203,033

2030-2034 981,000 216,743 1,197,743

2035-2036 456,000 20,700 476,700
Total 2,859,000 1,226,902 4,085,902

Current {116.000)

Long-term  § 2.743.000

Drinking Water State Revelving Fund Loan

On December 17, 2015, the District entered into a grant funding agreement with California State Water
Resources Control Board ("State") for a planning loan and grant under the California Water State
Revolving Fund (SRF) pursuant to Chapter 4.5, Part 12 of Division 104 of the California Health and
Safety Code (State Act) to be used for purposes of the Chromium V1 Remediation Project.

The project under the funding agreement includes planning regarding the possible implementation of the
Chromium VI Remediation Project. The agreement provides for a total funding of $2,016,000. The
amount consists of State Revolving Fund (SRF) in the amount of 1,516,000 and a Grant in the amount of
$500,000. The SRF program is a federal state partnership that provides communities a permanent,
independent source of low-cost financing for a wide range of water quality infrastructure projects. The
State Revolving Fund has an interest rate of zero percent with a loan repayment term of 10 years. The
loan repayment term shall commence after all disbursements have been paid and construction of the
Project has been estimated 1o be completed in Fiscal Year 2020. Amounts outstanding as of June 30, 2019
and 2018, are $84,870 and $50,341, respectively.

26

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 54 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(11) Long-Term Debt, continued
2018 Installment Sale Agreement #18-012

On September 1, 2018, the District entered into an agreement with the Municipal Finance Corporation
(“*Corporation™) whereas the District purchases the 2018 Project (*Project”) from the Corporation. The
Project refers 10 any additions, betterments, extensions or improvements to the Water System designated
by the Board of the District as a Project, the acquisition, and construction of which is to be paid by the
proceeds of any contract. The agreement provides for a total funding of $3,010,000 to fund startup of a
Capital Infrastructure Replacement Program (“CIRP™) as well as the initial project associated with the
CIRP - the replacement of approximately 23,500 feet of existing watermains with poly-vinyl chloride
watermains, called the Saddleback Project. A substantial portion of startup costs are for purchase of large
pipelaying and asphalt equipment that will be utilized over a 10-year period to complete additional CIRP
pipeline replacement projects. Funding may also cover new appurtenances related to the new watermains,
as well as other related expenditures.

Year Principal Interest Total
2020 5 152,006 115,885 267,891
2021 157,858 110,033 267,891
2022 163,936 103,955 267,891
2023 170247 97,644 267,891
2024 176,802 91,089 267,891

2025-2029 991,506 347,949 1,339,455

2030-2034 1.197.645 141,810 1,339455
Total 3,010,000 1,008,364 4,018,365

Current (152,006)

Long-term 3§ 2.857.994

{12) Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Plan Description

All qualified permanent and qualified temporary employees, even if employed through a temporary
agency, are eligible to participate in the District’s Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan, cost-sharing
multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and the
District’s resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the

pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on
the CalPERS website.

Benefits provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of
credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are
eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty
disability benefits after 10 years of service (vesting period). The death benefit range from simple return of
contributions plus interest to a monthly allowance, based upon member eligibility.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 55 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(12) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued
Bencefirts provided, continued

On September 12, 2012, the California Governor signed the California Public Employees' Pension
Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) into law. PEPRA took effect January 1, 2013. The new legislation closed
the District’s CalPERS 2.0% at 55 Risk Pool Retirement Plan 1o new employee entrants effective
December 31, 2013. All employees hired after January 1, 2013, are eligible for the District’s CalPERS
2.0% at 62 Retirement Plan under PEPRA,

The Plans’ provision and benefits in effect at June 30, 2019 are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous Risk Pool

Classic PEPRA
Prior to On or after
January 1, January 1,
Hire date 2013 2013
Benefit formula 2.0% (@ 55 2.0% (@ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 3 years of service 3 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life  monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a %o of eligible
compensation 2.0% 1o 2.5% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 6.500%
Required employer contribution rates 10.152% 7.266%

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be
effective on July 1, following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is
the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the contributions recognized as part of pension
expense for the Plan was as follows:

2419 2018
Contributions — emplover 5 188.604 159,828

Net Pension Liability

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of
the net pension liability of the Plan as follows:

2019 2018

Proportionate share of net pension liability § 472,046 490,750

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 56 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(12) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued
Net Pension Liability, continued

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 (the measurement
dates). and the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 (the valuation dates), rolled forward to
June 30, 2018 and 2017, using standard update procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.

The District’s proportionate share of the pension liability for the Plan as of the measurement date June 30,
2018 and 2017, were as follows:

Miscellancous
Proportion — June 30, 2016 0.00439%
Increase in proportion 0.00056%
Proportion — June 30, 2017 0.00495%
Decrease in proportion ~0.00005%
Proportion - June 30, 2018 0.00490%

Deferred Pension Outflows (Inflows) of Resources

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District recognized pension expense (credit) of
$15,583 and $48,745, respectively.

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, employer pension contributions reported as deferred outflows of resources
related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $188,604 and $159,828 will be recognized
as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

2019 2018
Deferred Deferred Deferred Delerred
Outflows of Inflows of Qutllows of Inllows of
Description Resources Resvurces Resources Resourees
Pension coniributions subsequent
to the measurement date 5 188,604 - 159,828 -
Differences between actual and
expected experience 11.948 - - (12,8006)
Changes in assumptions 40,626 - 110,140 -
Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan invesiments 2,334 - 26,965 -
Differences between actual contribution
and proportionate share of contribution 71,276 - 45,640 -
Net adjustment due to differences in
proportions of net pension liability 115.902 - 135.209 -
Total $ 430,690 - 477,782 (12.806)
29

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 57 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(12) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Deferred Pension Outflows (Inflows) af Resources, continued
At June 30, 2019, the District recognized other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Deferred Net
Ending  OQOutflows/(Inflows)

June 30, of Resources
2020 5 133,040
2021 100,905
2022 12,387
2023 (4,246)
2024 -

Remaining -

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities were determined as of June 30, 2017, which were rolled forward to June 30,
2018, using the following actuarial assumplions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2017 and 2016
Measurement Date June 30, 2018 and 2017
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of

GASB Statement No. 68

Discount rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.50% and 2.75%
Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Period upon which actuarial
experience survey assumptions

were based 1997 - 2011
Post retirement benefit increase Contract COLA up to 2.50% until Purchasing Power
Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies,
2.75% thereafier

* The monality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data, The table includes 15 years of
mortality improvements using Saciety of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP 2016. For more details on this
table, please refer to the December 2017 experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic data
from 1997 to 2015) that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% for the Plan. To determine
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the Plan, the
amortization and smoothing periods recently adopted by CalPERS were utilized. The crossover test was
performed for a miscellaneous agent plan and a safety agent plan selected as being more at risk of failing
the crossover test and resulting in a discount rate that would be different from the long-term expected rate
of return on pension investments.

30

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 58 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

{(12) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued
Discount Rate, continued

Based on the testing of the plans, the tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability for the Plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the fong-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-
term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated
above and rounded down 1o the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation.

As of June 30, 2019, the target allocation and the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class
were as follows:

New

Strategic Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10* Year 11+**
Global Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Global Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Sensitive 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%%
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Estate 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Infrastructure and Forestland 0.0% 0.00% 0.00%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%

Total 100.0%

31

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 59 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continucd
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
(12) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Discount Rate, continued

As of June 30, 2018, the target allocation and the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class
were as follows:

New

Strategic Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10* Year 1 1+**
Global Equity 47.0% 4.90% 5.38%
Global Fixed Income 19.0°0 0.80% 2.27%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.60% 1.39%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 3.90% 5.36%
Liquidity 2.0% -0.40% -0.90%

Total 100.0%

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following table presents the District’s proportionate share of the net position liability for the Plan,
calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the District’s proportional share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one
percentage point higher than the current rate.

As of June 30, 2019, the District’s net pension liability at the current discount rate, using a discount rate
that is one-percentage point lower, and using a discount rate that is one-percentage point higher, are as
follows:

Current
Discount Discount Discount
Rate - 1% Rate Rate + 1%
6.15% 7.15% 8.65%
District's Net Pension Liability s 914,172 472046 107,079

As of June 30, 2018, the District’s net pension liability at the current discount rate, using a discount rate
that is one-percentage point lower, and using a discount rate that is one-percentage point higher, are as
follows:

Current
Discount Discount Discount
Rate - 1% Rate Rate + 1%
6.15% 7.15% 8.65%
District's Net Pension Liability h 883,770 490,750 165,244

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 60 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(12) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in separately issued
CalPERS financial reports. See pages 39 through 40 for the Required Supplementary Schedules.

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District reported no payables for the outstanding amount of contribution
1o the pension plan.

(13) Morongo Basin Pipeline Project

During the year ended June 30, 1991, the District executed an Agreement for construction, operation and
financing of the Morongo Basin Pipeline project with the Mojave Water Agency (Agency). Pursuant to
this Agreement, the Agency has constructed a pipeline to supply, on a wholesale basis, certain areas of
San Bernardino County, including the Joshua Basin Water District, with water from the State Water
Project. Voters within the area to be served by the pipeline project approved the issuance of
$66,500,000 principal amount of general obligation bonds to finance the pipeline project. This resulted
in the formation of Improvement District M of the Mojave Water Agency. In the Agreement, the
District has agreed to make certain payments to the Agency to cover the District's share of fixed project
costs, including debt service. The District makes annual payments under the Agreement for Improvement
District M's general obligation bond sales of $12.000,000 principal amount in May 1991 (Series A) and
$40,735,000 principal amount in 1993 (Series B).

The District is obligated to pay 27% of the debt service on Improvement District M's general obligation
bonds. Improvement District M bonds are general obligations of the Mojave Water Agency and are
secured by and payable from the taxes levied upon the taxable property in Improvement District M. As
part of the agreement, approximately 70% of the debt service will be derived from the levy of taxes on
properties within Improvement District M, and 30% of the debt service on the bonds will be derived from
payments to be made by the Mojave Water Agency participants.

In April 1996, $50,485,000 of the Improvement District Bonds was refinanced with $51,780,000
Improvement District M of the Mojave Water Agency General Obligation Bonds (Morongo Basin
Pipeline Project) election of 1990, refunding Series of 1996. Interest rates range from 3.75% to 5.80%,

Payments of fixed project costs to the Agency have been classified as non-operating expenses in the
amount of $219,880 and $219,594 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

33

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 61 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District

Notces to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

{14) Net Position

Calculation of net position as of June 30. were as follows:

Net Investment in capital assets, net of related debt:
Capilal assets, not being depreciated
Depreciable capital assets, net
Current:
Bonds payable
Naotes payable
Non-current:
Bonds payable
Notes payable
Loans payable

Total net investment in capital asscts

Restricted net position;
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Accrued interest receivable - restricted
Special assessments receivable - restricted
Nole receivable — Hi-Desert Medical Center, restricted

Total restricted net position

Unrestricted net position:
Non-spendable net position:
Malerials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other deposits

Total non-spendable net position

Spendable net assets are designated as follows:
Designated
Unrestricted

Total spendable net position
Total unrestricted net pesition

Total net position

(15) Risk Management

2019 2018
779420 2,126,625
29,189,876 27,610,746
(116,000) (111,000)
(152,006) -
(2,743,000) (2,859,000)
(2,857,994) -
{84,870) (50.341)
24.015,432 26,717,030
3,347,928 2,112,718
30,050 16,360
85,845 86,970
596,883 67149
4.060,706 2.887.542
746,137 119,752
82,145 81,175
828.282 200,927
6,857,755 4,644,315
801412 3,404,616
7,659,167 $.048,931
8.487.449 8.249.858
36.563,587 37.854.430

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, The District is a member of the
Association of California Water Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/IPIA), an
intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers authority created to provide self-insurance programs for
California water agencies. The purpose of the ACWA/JPIA is to arrange and administer programs of self-

insured losses and 10 purchase excess insurance coverage.

34

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 62 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(15) Risk Management, continued

At June 30, 2019, the District participated in the liability, property and worker’ compensation programs of
the ACWA/JPIA as follows:

e General and auto liability, public officials and employees’ errors and omissions: Total risk
financing self-insurance limits of $5,000,000, combined single limit at $5,000,000 per
occurrence. The JPIA purchases additional excess coverage layers up to $60 million per
occurrence totai for general, auto and public officials liability, which increases the limits on the
insurance coverage noted above.

o Cyber Liability coverage is included for all Agencies participating in the Liability Program. It
protects the District from risks relating to information technology infrastructure and activities by
first and third parties. The limit is $3,000,000 per loss/$5,000,000 program annual aggregate. The
relention is based on annual revenue — the District’s retention is $25,000 per loss.

In addition to the above, the District also has the following insurance coverage:

e Employee dishonesty coverage up to $1,000,000 per loss includes public employee dishonesty,
forgery or alteration and computer fraud subject to a $1,000 deductible per loss. JPIA pools for
the first $100,000; excess coverage is purchased through Hartford.

e Property loss, including boiler and machinery coverage is paid at the replacement cost for
buildings, fixed equipment and personal property on file of $19,948,845 subject to a $2,500
deductible per occurrence. Repairs or replacement must be completed within two years; otherwise
loss is valued on an actual cash value basis. Mobile equipment and vehicles are valued based on
actual cash vaiue at time of loss, subject to a $1,000 deductible per occurrence. ACWA JPIA has
purchased excess coverage up to $500 million.

»  Workers’ compensation insurance up to California statutory limits for all work related
injuries/illnesses covered by California law. The ACWA/JPIA is self-insured up to $2,000,000
and excess insurance coverage has been purchased.

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years and
there were no reductions in the District’s insurance coverage during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019,
2018 and 2017. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount
of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the respective insurance coverage. Liabilities include an
amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). There was no IBNR claims payable
as of June 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017.

(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to June
30, 2019, that has effective dates thal may impact future financial presentations.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Stutement No. 84

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84 — Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included
to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities.

35

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 63 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84, continued

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other
employee benefit) trust funds, (2} investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial
funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent
arrangement that meets specific criteria.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning afier December 15, 2018.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No, 87

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statetnent No. 87 — Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting
for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. 1t establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is
required Lo recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89 — Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End
of u Construction Period. The objectives of this Stalement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2)
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.

This Statement establishes accounting requiremenis for interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in
accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements, which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the
cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a
result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical
cosl of a capilal asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund,

This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as
an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning afier December 15, 2019,
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements of this Statement should be applied prospectively.

36

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 64 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Starement No. 90

In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90 — Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency
and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a
majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition
of an invesiment. A majority equity interest that meels the definition of an investment should be measured
using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary
activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent
fund. Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value.

For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a government should
report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or fund that holds the
equity interest should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the equity method. This
Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization results
in the government being financially accountable for the legally separate organization and, therefore, the
government should report that organization as a component unit.

This Statement also requires that a compoenent unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity
interest account for its assets. deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources
at acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component
unit. Transactions presented in flows statements of the component unit in that circumstance should
include only transactions that occurred subsequent to the acquisition.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements should be applied retroactively, except for the
provisions related to (1) reporting a majority equity interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a
component unit if the government acquires a 100 percent equity interest. Those provisions should be
applied on a prospective basis.

Governmental Aceounting Standuards Board Statement No, 91

In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91 — Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of
this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1} commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those
objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit
debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting
of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated
with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures.

This Statement also addresses arrangements—ofien characterized as leases—that are associated with
conduit debt obligations. In those arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the
proceeds of a conduit debt obligation and used by third-party obligors in the course of their activities.
Payments from third-party obligors are intended to cover and coincide with debt service payments.
During those arrangements, issuers retain the titles to the capital assets. Those titles may or may not pass
to the obligors at the end of the arrangements.

37

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 65 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91, continued

This Statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations,
organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’
conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities
related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about
the amount recognized and how the liabilities changed during the reporting period.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning afier December 15, 2020,
Earlier application is encouraged.

(17) Commitments and Contingencies

Grant Awards

Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such audit could lead to
requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.
Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant.

Construction Contracts

The District has a variety of agreements with private parties relating to the installation, improvement or
modification of water and wastewater facilities and distribution systems within its service area. The
financing of such construction contracts is being provided primarily from the District’s replacement
reserves and capital contributions.

Litigation

In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties.
After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any,
will not materially affect its financial condition.

(18) Subsequent Events

Events occwrring after June 30, 2019, have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial
statements or disclosure as of December 18, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

38

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 66 of 105



<Page Intentionally Left Blank>

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 67 of 105



Required Supplementary Information

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 68 of 105



Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 69 of 105



Joshun Basin Water District
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
As of June 30, 2019
Last Ten Years®

Measurement Dates
6/30/2018 63072017 G30H2016 63072015 60,2014

Dstrt's Proportion of the Net Pension Lbiy {1 00H490% 0 00495% 0 00439% 0.003%04% 0.00463%
Dustriet's Proportionate Share of the

Net Pension Labiliy 3 472046 490.750 379.802 210679 288403
Dstret's Covered-Employee Payroll 3 1.467.121 1.462.157 1,344,686 1.384.706 1385361

District’s proportionate share of the net pension labily
as a Percentage of its Covered-Emploves Payroll 32.17% 33 56% 28 14% 19.55% 20.82%

Plan's Fiducmry Net Position as a Percentage of
the Plan's Total Pension Liabdiy 83 56% 82.83% 83.60% 87.09% 83 03%

Plan's Proportionate Share of Aggregate
Employer Contributions 106518 80.544 72,122 63.158 38.155

Notes to the Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

Changes in Benefit Terms — The District can make changes (o therr plan provisions, and such changes occur on an ongoing basis. A summary of
the plan provisions that were used for the District’s plan can be found in the plan’s annual valuation report

Changes of Assumptions - In fiscal year 2019, the financial reponing discount rate remained at 7.15%. In December 2016, the CalPERS Board
approved lowering the funding discount rate used from 7.50% to 7.00%, which is to be phased-in over a three-year period (7.50% to 7.375%,
7.375% to 7.23%. and 7 25% to 7.00%) beginning with the June 30, 2016, valuation reposts. The funding discount rale includes a 15 basis-point
reduction for admsmistrative expenses, and the remaining decrease is consistent with the change in the financial reponting discount rate

* The District has presented information for those years for which information is avatlable untd a full 10- year trend is compiled

£

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 70 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions
As of June 30, 2019
Last Ten Yenrs*

Fiscal Years

Description 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 /30,2016 G/3072015 6/30/2014

Acwarally Deterimined Contribution S 1701464 144,890 145219 143957 156,268 1484451
Contributions m Relation 1o the Aciuarally Determned
Comtritaition {18E,604) (159.828) {E37.342) 121564 1146314 {138.973)
Contribution Deflickeney {Excess) s (18.140) {14938} 7.877 22,393 H.954 9478
Covered Payroll 5 1.467,121 1.462.157 1.3-14.686 1.381.706 1.385.361 1335.150
Contrilnmions as a percemtage of

Covered-Employee Payroll 1162% 991 10.80%, 10.40° 11.28% 11.12%

Notes to the Schedule of Penston Plan Contributions

* The District has presented information for those vears for which information is available until a full 10+ year trend is compiled

40

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 71 of 105



Report on Internal Controls and Compliance

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 72 of 105



Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 73 of 105



Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Joshua Tree, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Joshua Basin
Water District (District} as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprises the District’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thercon dated December 18. 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a conirol does not aliow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant dcficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contro] that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance,

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reporied under Government Auditing Standards.

41

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 74 of 105



Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, (continucd)

Purpaose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government  Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
December 18, 2019

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 75 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Management Report

June 30, 2019

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 76 of 105



Joshua Basin Water District
Management Report

Table of Contents

Item Page No.
General Introduction 1
Summary of Current Year Comments and Recommendations 1
Status of Comments and Recommendations Made in the Previous Year 2
Appendix:

Audit/Finance Committee Letter 1-3
Schedule of Adjusting Journal Entries 4

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 77 of 105



CONFIDENTIAL

Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Joshua Tree, California

Dear Members of the Board:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Joshua Basin Water District (District)
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, we considered internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a conirol does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, inisstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited period described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weakness. Given these limitations during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Summary of Current Year Comments and Recommendations

Our comments, all of which have been discussed with the appropriate members of management, are
summarized as follows:;

Disclasure of Audit Adjustinents and Reclassifications

As your external auditor, we assume that the books and records of the District are properly adjusted
before the start of the audit. In many cases, however, audit adjustments and reclassifications are made in
the normal course of the audit process to present the District’s financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or for comparison purposes with
the prior year. For the Board of Directors to gain a full and complete understanding and appreciation of
the scope and extent of the audit process we have presented these audit adjusiments and reclassifications
as an altachment to this letter. There can be very reasonable explanations for situations of having
numerous adjustments as well as having no adjustments at all. However, the issue is simply disclosure of
the adjustments and reclassifications that were made and to provide the Board of Directors with a better
understanding of the scope of the audit.

Management’s Response

The District has reviewed and approved all of the audit adjustment and reclassification entries provided
by the auditor and have entered those entries into the District’s accounting system.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 78 of 105



Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Page 2

Summary of Comments and Recommendations Made in the Previous Year
Disclosure of Audit Adjustinents and Reclassifications

As your external auditor, we assume that the books and records of the District are properly adjusted
before the start of the audit. In many cases, however, audit adjustments and reclassifications are made in
the normal course of the audit process to present the District’s financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or for comparison purposes with
the prior year. For the Board of Directors to gain a full and complete understanding and appreciation of
the scope and extent of the audit process we have presented these audit adjustments and reclassifications
as an attachment to this letter. There can be very reasonable explanations for situations of having
numerous adjustments as well as having no adjustments at all. However, the issue is simply disclosure of
the adjustments and reclassifications that were made and to provide the Board of Directors with a better
understanding of the scope of the audit.

Management’s Response

The District has reviewed and approved all of the audit adjustment and reclassification entries provided
by the auditor and have entered those entries into the District’s accounting system.

ok ok R ok kR R

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management and the Board of
Directors of the District. This restriction is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

We appreciate the courtesy and cooperation extended to us during our examination. We would be pleased
to discuss the contents of this letter with you at your convenience. Please do not hesitate to contact us.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
December 18, 2019

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 79 of 105



APPENDIX
Joshua Basin Water District
Audit/Finance Committee Letter

June 30, 2019

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 80 of 105



Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Joshua Tree, California

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities, of the Joshua Basin Water
District (District) for the year ended June 30, 2019, Professional standards require that we provide you
with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and, if
applicable, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our
engagement letter to you dated March 26, 2019. Professional standards also require that we communicate
to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2019.
We noted no transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the basic financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
the basic financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the position in the basic
financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the fair value of cash and cash equivalents is based on information
provided by financial institutions. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
fair value of cash and investments in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the allowance for delinquent/doubtful accounts is based on historical
write-offs of past due delinquent/doubtful customer accounts, customer creditworthiness, and
calculated assumptions of expected future write-offs. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions
used to develop the allowance for delinquent/doubtful accounts in determining that it is reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of capital assets depreciation is based on historical estimates of each
capitalized item’s useful life expectancy or cost recovery period. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the capital asset depreciation calculations in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 81 of 105



Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Page 2

Significant Audit Matters, continued
Ounalitative Aspects of Accounting Practices, continued

Management’s estimate of the defined benefit pension plan’s deferred outflows of resources, net
pension liability, and deferred inflows of resources are based on an actuarial evaluation of these
amounts which was conducted by a third-party actuary. We evaluated the basis, actuarial methods and
assumptions used by the actuary to calculate these amounts for the District to determine that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain basic financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the basic financial statements are:

The disclosure of fair value of cash and cash equivalents in Note 2 to the basic financial statements
represents amounts susceptible to market fluctuations.,

The disclosure of the District’s allowance for delinquent/doubtful accounts in Note 3 to the basic
financial statements represents amounts susceptible to external factors the District has no control
over, such as, the state of the economy in the District’s service area.

The disclosure of capital assets, net in Note 9 to the basic financial statements is based on historical
information which could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item.

The disclosure of the District’s defined benefit pension plan in Note 12 to the basic financial
statements is based on actuarial assumptions which could differ from actual costs.

The disclosures in the basic financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit,

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatentents

Professional Standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, except those that are considered trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. (See Page 4)

Disagreements mith Management

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction that could be
significant to the basic financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit of the District.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the Management
Representational Letter to the Auditor dated December 18, 2019.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves the
application of an accounting principle to the District’s basic financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consuliant has all the relevant facts. To
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 82 of 105



Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Page 3

Significant Audit Matters, continued
Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditor. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Management Discussion and Analysis, which is required
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial staternents. We did
not audit the R8I and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

Conclusion

We appreciate the cooperation extended us by Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller, and
Anne Roman, Accountant, in the performance of our audit testwork.

We will be pleased to respond to any questions you have about the foregoing. We appreciate the
opportunity to continue to be of service to the District.

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management
of the District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this letter, which is a matter of public
record.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
December 18, 2019

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 83 of 105



Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Page 4

Joshua Basin Water District
Schedule of Adjusting Journal Entries
June 30, 2019

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 1
To reduce over-accrued interest expense for FY19,
200-24000 ACCRUED INT PAYABLE - CIRP LOAN 5 24,140.00
50908220 INTEREST EXPENSLE-MUNICIPAL FINANCE LOAN (CIRDP) 24,140.00

Adjusting Journal Entrics JE# 2
To adjust accrued payroll to reflect actual finance department salary expense,
506-01101 FINANCL SALARY 5.694.81
200-22100  ACCRUED WAGES PAYABLE 5,694.81

Adjusting Journal Entrics JE# 3
To reclassify 2018 contributions to NPL at June 30, 2019,
200-22360  NET PENSION LIABILITY 159,828.00
100-13600  DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 159,828.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4
To reclassify 2019 contributions to Deferred Outflows of Resources at June 30, 2019.
100-13600 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCLS 188.604.00
509-09215 RETIREMENT: CALPERS GASB68 CONTRA 188,604.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 5
To record changes in pension liability during FY 17/18 at June 30, 2019.

100-13600 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 29.241.00
100-13600 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCLES 29,803.00
100-13600 DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 33,310.00
100-13600 DEFERRED QOUTFLOWS OF RESOLRCES 72,374.00
200-23050 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 12,806.00
509-09213 RETIREMENT: CALPERS GASB68 CONTRA 37.582.00
100-13600 DEFERRED OUTILOWS OF RESOURCES 12,806.00
100-13600 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 20,808.00
10013600 DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 60,378.00
200-22360  NET PENSION LIABILITY 141,124.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 6

To record changes in the deferred outflows and deferred inflows (amortization) during
FY17/18 at June 30, 2019,

509-09215 RETIREMENT: CALPERS GASB6& CONTRA 166,605.00

100-13600 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3.822.00
100-13600 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 4,482.00
100-13600 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 9,121.00
100-13600 DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 57.477.00
100-13600 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 5 91,703.00

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 84 of 105



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT
MEETING AGENDA REPORT

Meeting of the Board of Directors December 19, 2019

Reportto:  President and Board

Prepared by: Susan Greer }e’\?{

TOPIC: CONSIDER RESOLUTION 19-1017, ADOPTING COLLECTIONS POLICY AND
AMENDING RULES AND REGULATIONS TO IMPLEMENT SB 998

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution 19-1017

ANALYSIS:

A final draft Collections Policy (“Policy”) is attached for your review. The Policy is written to comply
with the “written policy on discontinuation of residential service for nonpayment” requirements of SB
998, which law is incorporated into the California Health & Safety Code. The District is also subject
to disconnection laws in the Government Code, and those requirements have also been included in this
Policy. A comprehensive policy addressing all aspects related to collections of payments for water
service did not previously exist, so in addition to the requirements of SB 998, other related topics are
incorporated in the Policy. An example of that is the information included regarding governmental
agencies that have exemptions from payment of delinquent fees, either by statute or by agreement with
the District. Also, we’re not ready quite yet, but | recommend that we add information about the lien
process to the Policy in the future.

1 worked with legal counsel from Colantuono, Highsmith and Whatley to review the policy and it has
been approved. The draft policy was reviewed by the Finance Committee on December 11 and

Attorney Ryan Reed from the legal firm participated telephonically. The Committee recommends for
approval.

Because the ramifications of the Policy are not yet fully understood, and could result in more or less

disconnections over time, potentially taxing staff resources, we have attempted to simplify the Policy
as much as possible.

Significant changes to existing policy required by SB 998 are summarized below:

¢ Timeline for disconnection of water service for nonpayment increases by law from 35 days
after the billing date to 60 days after the delinquent date.

¢ Low income customers with doctor notes must be provided with alternative payment
arrangements in order to avoid disconnection, allowing extended time to pay the balance due.

» When the billing and service addresses are different, a separate letter, addressed to “Occupant,”
mailed to the property address 10 days before disconnection, is required. Note that there are

over 2,500 of these address variations District-wide,

e All written notices required pursuant to the policy shall be provided in English and Spanish.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 85 of 105



The District must have the policy on discontinuation of residential service for nonpayment
available on our website and offer to provide copy for customers. The District must also
provide the policy and other notices in Spanish on our website and when mailed/delivered.

* Doorhanger Tags must be posted at each property in a prominent location at least 48 hours
before disconnection for non-payment upon advice of counsel.

¢ Interest charges on delinquent bills for low income customers must be waived once every 12
months.

¢ Reconnection fees for low income customers during business hours is limited to $50 and $150
after hours, or less if our actual cost is less. Our current costs do not exceed these limits and the
law allows an annual escalation of the current $50/$150 limits in accordance with the CPI
beginning 1/1/21,

» If customer subject to disconnection is granted an alternative payment arrangement to avoid
disconnection and fails to honor the payment requirements for at least 60 more days, the
District must post a 5-day notice of intent to discontinue service at the property location.

* The new law allows “an adult at the residence” or “a resident of the premises” or “a tenant of
the customer™ to dispute or appeal a water bill subject to disconnection, which results in
investigation and cessation of disconnection while investigation is pending.

As the new disconnection cycle resets, from 35 days after billing date to 60 days after delinquent date,
we will have no disconnections at all in the months of February or March 2020. The first
disconnections under this new program will occur in April 2020.

In addition to adopting the new Collection Policy, some sections of the current Rules and Regulations
need to be amended. A Markup Copy of the proposed Rules and Regulations changes is also attached.

Next Steps:

The water bill will need to be redesigned again, providing clear information to customers about each
monthly charge, which amounts are current, which are delinquent, and which are subject to
disconnection.

Once approved, the Collections Policy will need to be translated into Spanish. A few other written
notifications required by the new law also need to be translated. The Policy needs to be added to our
website.

Software changes are required for the bill redesign and other billing changes such as changing the
timeline for disconnection.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Unfortunately, the full financial impacts of this new law will not be known for a few years. The first
full year of bad debt associated with the new Policy will not be written off until the end of fiscal 21/22.
There will be increased administrative costs for additional mailed notices to occupants, hand delivery
of doorhangers, and management of payment arrangements. In addition, we will be redesigning our
water bill and software changes are required, both increased one-time up-front costs.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 86 of 105



MARKUP COPY OF CURRENT RULES AND REGULATIONS

INTRODUCTION
SECTION |
GENERAL PROVISIONS

He or His is understood throughout the document to represent both the male and female gender.

Discontinuance of Service: Any customer failing to comply with all or any part of the Rules and
Regulations or failure to pay rates and charges of this District will be subject to having water service to
their customer service facility discontinued. The District will mail notification of notice of intent to
discontinue service, and the customer will be afforded an opportunity to be heard before water service
will be discontinued. Water service to such customer will not be restored until such customer will have
complied with such rule or regulation or have paid such rate or charge. See Exhibit A for the District’s
Collection Palicy, which regulates discontinuance of service for non-payment.

Unless remedied, the customer's service may be discontinued within ten days after the District notifies
him of violation. If such violation endangers the public’s health and safety, the District may discontinue
water service immediately without notice.

Customer Complaints: Customers are welcome to contact the District office at any time during regular
business hours to ask any questions or to file any complaints regarding the operation of the District. The
appropriate staff will address any such questions and complaints and make every reasonable attempt to
arrive at an agreeable understanding with the customer. If desired, the customer will be granted a
conference with the Manager upon scheduling a mutually convenient time,

Should a customer be unable to reach satisfaction, regarding his question or complaint, he may submit
his question or complaint in writing to the Board for consideration or may appear in person before the
Board at its next regular scheduled meeting after requesting to be included on the agenda of the
meeting. Action by the Board will not be delayed more than to the time of the next regular meeting
unless further delay is agreed to by the customer to permit the full discovery of facts regarding the
question or the full discovery of facts regarding the question or complaint. The Board will try to arrive at
a fair and impartial solution consistent with the District's best interest.

See Exhibit A for the District’s Collection Policy, which provides the policy for disputing or appealing
water bills, which is separate from this policy about peneral complaints.

The appeal of Administrative Rulings: authorized District representatives in accordance with the rules
and regulations make all rulings, decisions, and determinations. Such rulings may be appealed in
writing, addressed to the District Board, and delivered to the District Manager within five days of the
administrative ruling being received by the customer. Such appeals may be considered by the District
Board at its next regular meeting and the Board's ruling, in full compliance with the law and the District's
rules and regulations, will be final.

Variances: The customer shall have the right to request a variance from specific provisions of any of
these rules and regulations. All requests for a variance shall be submitted in a written form, and the
appropriate fee shall be paid before the request will be considered. Variance applications submitted at
least ten days before a scheduled Board Meeting shall be included on the agenda of the next regular

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 87 of 105



meeting, and the decision of the Board will be final. The customer will be given a written notice of the
disposition of the case, including any conditions or approval, which may have been adopted.

ARTICLE 1.18 Terms of Bill Payment Bills for metered water service shall be rendered at the end of each
billing period. Such bills shall be due and payable at the office of the-t8%D District, and shall be
delinquent twenty-one days after date of the billing. Active Accounts may be turned off after written
notice from the J2\WD-District and an opportunity to be heard, if payment is not made within thirty-five
sixty (60) days of the billing-delinquent date. Belinguent-AecountChargesorlnactive Accountsper
Articledd may-besubject to-ien-farunpaid-charges—All past due charges must be paid before Active
Account status is granted for the affected parcel.

ARTICLE 1.24 Turn Off Meter for Non-Payment

Customers are encouraged to avoid disconnection of water service for non-payment by contacting the
District to determine if they are eligible for a payment arrangement that would spread the balance due
over a longer payback period. See Exhibit A for the District’s Collection Policy, which regulates
disconnection of service for non-payment. Watermeterswillboturned offfornon-payment-ofwateror
stheIBWD-charges-after- wiitten natilication-enorelterthe 15th dayafterthe ariginal-dateobthe
biliagfersemice—Lustomer service turpod-efHornenpayment el billz-ar-charges will-not-baturnad oa
agait-until at-bills and charges-beth-pastdueand-current—incduding-double the susrantea deposithave
bees paid —Actualterminstenebwatersericewillnotbe-perlormed-onanyboturday Surday-leaal
haliday-aratany-tme during which-theJBWDB-businessoffice-is-rotopento-the public

IBWD ey require acopyofarental-agreement torestereservice after beingturned-efi-for
ReRpayRent-

bingle-unitresidential nrcommercish burp-ot-Horror-paymentreguires atleast 3 48-hournatice prisrts
termination of sepvice —JBW B reguired-to-make areasonable; good faitheffort-tocontact anadult
residing-at-the-promisespfthe customer by-phene-oris parsen belsrecepenis terminated-

Multi-UaitResidentialturrofferron-paymentrequiresindividualnatification of ol the setual users-of
thewatersepdce thdaysbefore the proapasedierminationelsarvice—Thenetieewithinform thaactual
wserrthatthey-have-the right te become-the-customers oHBW B -without-being reguire d-to-pay-the
aretRtdaeen-the-gelingquant accounl-previdedthat:

a- Fach aciual usermeet-the fogoirements o BWE s Rulas-and Regulations covarpinpwater service:
and

btschactualuseragreesto-thetermsand-conditionsapplicableto-obiaining waterfram-t BWD-

Ha-custemerhasrequestedand-beengranted a-paymentarrangementorcontractamertization
apreement-to-extend-thelrpaymentovero-period-notioexceed Ll moanths-and-then falstocomply
with-theagreameni; IBWD willcemmanceterminationof servce-by-giviag 48-hourpriowetlan petice
Afterfallure to comply-with-the payment arranpementereontract- the asrecmentwil-betarminated
and-the-ramaining balanca-i-immedistely-due eracesuptwilb-be-subjer tto-cut-of Dwithin 48 howrs

ARTICLE 1.27 Delinquent Account Service Charge

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 88 of 105



Accounts not paid on or before the date that they become delinquent may be assessed a one-time
delinquent account service charge plus a monthly service charge on the unpaid balance. Accounts paid
before the due date with payments that are subsequently returned {e.g. NSF check) will also be charged
the delinquent account service charges as indicated above. See Exhibit A for the District’s Collection
Policy which regulates Delinquent Account Service Charges.

ARTICLE 1.28 Payment Arrangements and-Contracts

Customers that cannot pay their bills by the scheduled cut-off date may be able to make a payment
arrangement ereentract-dependingonameuntandlength-oHtimeforspreading payments-that gives
them additional time to make payment. The 2'W5-District will consider whether the customer qualifies
for a payment arrangement-orcentract based on-past-paymenthistoryand-trackrecord of honoring
previsuscommitments, Water service will not be terminated for any customer who complies with the
payment arrangement, if the customer also keeps the account current as new charges accrue in each
subsequent billing period. The-JBWB-serds-cusiomersa-letterindicating a-paymentarrangement
azreement—Afterfailure te comply with-the-saymentarranpgementorcentraci—the aerepment-will-be
terminatedand the remainingbalspesisimeredistelrdue araccaunt-will be subjectiocut-oblwithin 48
heurs:_See Exhibit A for the District’s Collection Policy which regulates Payment Arrangements.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 89 of 105



Other sections need amendment? 1.18

INTRODUCTION

SECTION [ GENERAL PROVISIONS

He or His is understood throughout the document to represent both the male and female gender.

Discontinuance of Service: Any customer failing te-comphrwith-allorany-partofthe Rulesand
Regulations-erfaillure-to pay rates and charges of this District will be subject to having water service to
their customer service facility discontinued. Policies relating to disconnection of water service for

nonpayment are included in Exhibit XX of the Rules and Regulations.

Any customer failing to comply with all or any part of the Rules and Regulations will be subject to having
water service to their customer service facility discontinued. The District will mail notification of notice
of intent to discontinue service, and the customer will be afforded an opportunity to be heard before
water service will be discontinued. Water service to such customer will not be restored until such
customer will have complied with such rule or regulation-erhave-paid-suehrate-ercharge. Unless
remedied, the customer's service may be discontinued within ten days after the District notifies him of
violation. If such violation endangers the public’s health and safety, the District may discontinue water
service immediately without notice.

Customer Complaints: Customers are welcome to contact the District office at any time during regular
business hours to ask any questions or to file any complaints regarding the operation of the District. The
appropriate staff will address any such questions and complaints and make every reasonable attempt to
arrive at an agreeable understanding with the customer. If desired, the customer will be granted a
conference with the Manager upon scheduling a mutually convenient time. Should a customer be
unable to reach satisfaction, regarding his question or complaint, he may submit his question or
complaint in writing to the Board for consideration or may appear in person before the Board at its next
regular scheduled meeting after requesting to be included on the agenda of the meeting. Action by the
Board will not be delayed more than to the time of the next regular meeting unless further delay is
agreed to by the customer to permit the full discovery of facts regarding the question erthe-full
discovery-of-factsregarding-the-question-or complaint. The Board will try to arrive at a fair and impartial

solution consistent with the District's best interest. Procedures to contest or appeal a water bill are
located in Exhibit XX of the Rules and Regulations

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 90 of 105



The appeal of Administrative Rulings: authorized District representatives in accordance with the rules
and regulations make all rulings, decisions, and determinations. Such rulings may be appealed in
writing, addressed to the District Board, and delivered to the District Manager within five days of the
administrative ruling being received by the customer. Such appeals may be considered by the District

Board at its next regular meeting and the Board's ruling, in full compliance with the law and the District's
rules and regulations, will be final.

Variances: The customer shall have the right to request a variance from specific provisions of any of
these rules and regulations. All requests for a variance shall be submitted in a written form, and the
appropriate fee shall be paid before the request will be considered. Variance applications submitted at
least ten days before a scheduled Board Meeting shall be included on the agenda of the next regular
meeting, and the decision of the Board will be final. The customer will be given a written notice of the
disposition of the case, including any conditions or approval, which may have been adopted

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 91 of 105



Exhibit A
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT
COLLECTIONS POLICY

Purpose/Background:

This policy enumerates Joshua Basin Water District’s (hereinafter “District”) administrative actions for
the collection of delinquent accounts, including notifications, fees applicable and discontinuation of
service. This policy will be made available to the public on the District’s website at www.jbwd.com, by
email and in person. The District will provide a copy of the policy upon request, without charge.

Customers are encouraged to contact the District by phone at {760) 366-8438 to discuss options for
avoiding discontinuation of water service for nonpayment under the terms of this policy.

Text of policy

Joshua Basin Water District is governed in the execution of the collection of delinquent accounts by
California Government Code Sections 60370 — 60375.5. As an urban or community water system, the
District is also governed by Senate Bill No. 998, Health and Safety Code Sections 116900 — 116926,
effective February 1, 2020.

Delinquent Account

Delinquent accounts are hereafter identified as any account that remains unpaid (and without having
made written payment arrangements) by close of business 20 days after issuance of the water bill, or
the due date indicated on the water bill, whichever is later. The following rules apply to the collection of
delinquent accounts:

1. Small Balance Accounts

Any balance on an account that is less than or equal to the current amount of the %” Basic Monthly Fee
may be carried over and added to the next billing period, and although it is still subject to a Delinquent
Account Service Charge for late payment, it will not incur further collection action.

2. Delinguent Account Service Charges
if payment for a bill is not received by close of business on the 20" day after the bill is issued, or the

following business day if the 20" is a weekend or District holiday, Delinguent Account Service Charges
will be assessed the following business day. On occasion, due to operational issues, the due date will be
later but never sooner than this date. The due date will be displayed prominently on each water bill.
The due date displayed on the water bill takes precedence should that date differ from this policy
language.

Delinquent Account Service Charges for late payment are comprised of a 10% penalty on each original
unpaid balance, plus .5% per month interest for each subsequent month of delinquency.

3. Waiver of Interest

The District will waive the interest portion of the Delinguent Account Service Charges once every 12
months for all customers,

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 92 of 105



4. Waiver of Delinqguent Notices and Charges
The State of California, because of special legislation, excellent long-term payment history, a sound
financial base and variations in budget approval and warrant payment procedures, will not be sent

delinquent notices nor assessed a Delinquent Account Service Charges for delinquent payment on their
accounts.

The Copper Mountain College, a local government agency relying on funding from the State of
California, which has above been given a waiver of delinquent fees, has requested and was also given a
waiver of Delinquent Account Service Charges.

Both the State of California and Copper Mountain College are still subject to disconnection of water
service in accordance with this policy should non-payment of their accounts occur.

5. Alternative Payment Arrangements

a. Reguesting Alternative Payment Arrangements

Any customer may request an alternative payment arrangement to avoid disruption of service. The
District will consider all circumstances surrounding the request and determine whether the payment
arrangement is warranted. Except as described in Section 5(b) of this policy, it is within the District’s sole
discretion to grant an alternative payment arrangement. Payment arrangements must be in writing and
signed by the customer. Only one payment arrangement per account will be authorized at a time.

b. Qualifications for Alternative Payment Arrangements

The District will not discontinue residential water service for nonpayment if all the following conditions
are met:

1. Customer or tenant of the customer submits certification from a primary care provider stating
that discontinuation of service would be life threatening to, or pose a serious threat to the health
and safety of, a resident of the premises where the service is provided.

2. Customer demonstrates he or she is financially unable to pay for service within the District’s
normal billing cycle. A customer may be deemed financially unable to pay if:

A. Any member of the customer’s household is a current recipient of CalWORKS,
CalFresh, general assistance, Medi-Cal, Supplemental Security Income/State
Supplementary Payment Program, or California Special Supplemental Nutrition
Program for Women, Infants and Children; or

B. The customer declares in writing that the household’s annual income is less than
200 percent of the federal poverty level.

3. Customer agrees to enter into an alternative payment arrangement offered by the District,
governed by the policies described herein.

A payment arrangement spreads the unpaid balance over a longer period as determined by the District
in consultation with the customer, not to exceed six (6) months from the date the payment arrangement
is executed. The General Manager or his or her designee, in their reasonable discretion, may authorize a

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 93 of 105



longer term to avoid undue hardship on the customer. While establishing a payment arrangement will
avoid disconnection of water service as long as the terms of the arrangement are complied with, the
District still applies Delinquent Account Service Charges each month on the unpaid balance.

¢. Failure to Comply with Alternative Payment Arrangements
The customer must comply with the terms of any alternative payment arrangement and remain current

as charges accrue in each subsequent billing period. The customer may not request another alternative
payment arrangement of any subsequent unpaid charges while paying charges pursuant to an
alternative payment arrangement. Failure to comply with the terms of an alternative payment
arrangement for sixty (60) days or more, including payment of current charges, will result in the issuance
of a final notice of intent to disconnect service. The disconnection notice will be in the form of a
doorhanger posted at the property in a prominent and conspicuous location no less than five {5)
business days in advance of discontinuance of service.

6. Procedures to Contest or Appeal a Water Bill

a. Time to Initiate a Complaint or Request an Investigation

A customer may initiate a complaint or request an investigation in writing regarding the amount of a bill
within five (5) days of receiving a disputed bill. For purposes of this Section only, a bill shall be deemed
received by a customer eight (8} days after mailing. Water service shall not be discontinued while the
appeal is pending.

b. Review by District

A timely complaint or request for investigation shall be reviewed by the District, who shall provide a
written determination to the customer. The District will consider whether to offer the customer an
alternative payment arrangement per Section 5 of this policy. The District may, in its discretion, review
untimely complaints or requests for investigation; however, such complaints or requests are not subject
to appeal under Section 6(c) of this policy.

c. Appeal to Board of Directors
Any customer whose timely complaint or request for an investigation pursuant to this Section has

resulted in an adverse determination by the District may appeal the determination to the Board of
Directors by filing & written notice of appeal with the District Secretary within ten (10) business days of
the District’s mailing of its determination. Upon receiving the notice of appeal, the District Secretary will
set the matter to be heard at an upcoming Board meeting and mail the customer written notice of the
time and place of the hearing at least ten (10) days before the meeting. The decision of the Board shall
be final.

d. Good Faith Payment

If a customer disputes the water bill and exercises their right to appeal, the District will not disconnect
water service for non-payment while the appeal is pending. While an investigation of a disputed bill is
being conducted, the customer will be required to pay an amount equal to a typical bill for that length of
time.

7. Notifications
The District will make reasonable, good faith efforts to notify the customer as required by this Policy but
assumes no responsibility for contact information that has not been kept up to date by the customer.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 94 of 105



8. Written Disconnection Notice

The District shall not discontinue water service for non-payment until payment by the customer has
been delinquent for at least 60 days. The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to contact
the customer in writing at least ten {10) days before discontinuation of water service for non-payment.
The written disconnection notice will be mailed to the mailing address designated on the account.

If the mailing address and the address of the property to which water service is provided are different, a
second notice addressed to “Occupant” will be mailed to the service address at least ten {10} days
before discontinuation of water service for non-payment. In addition, a doorhanger notifying residents
of the impending disconnection of water service, along with a copy of this policy, will be posted at the
property in a prominent location at least 48 hours before disconnection. The written disconnection
notice and occupant notice will include the following information:

= Customer’'s name and address

=  Amount that is past due

= Date by which payment or payment arrangements are required to avoid
discontinuation of service

* Description of the process to apply for a payment arrangement

* Description of the process to dispute or appeal a bill

= Description of the procedure for the customer to obtain information on financial
assistance, if applicable

* Telephone number where customer may request a payment arrangement or receive
additional information from the District

= Web links to the District’s collections and service restoration policies

a. Notice to Residential Tenants/Occupants in an Individually Metered Residence

The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to inform the occupants, by means of a written
notice when the water service account is in arrears and subject to disconnection at least ten (10) days
before water service is shut off. The written notice will advise the tenant/occupant that they have the
right to become customers of the District without being required to pay the amount due on the
delinquent account, as long as they can verify that the delinquent account customer of record is or was
the landlord, manager or agent of the dwelling by providing a lease or rental agreement, rent receipts or
other verification acceptable to the District. The District will also deliver a doorhanger notice to the
property at least 48 hours before disconnection of water service. The tenant/occupant must also be
willing to assume financial responsibility for subsequent charges for water service at that address and
comply with the application requirements for new water service, including payment of fees.

b. Notice to Tenants/Occupants in a Multi-Unit Complex Served through a Master Meter

The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to inform the occupants, by means of a written
notice distributed to each unit in the complex at least ten {10) days before water service is shut off,
when the water service account is in arrears and subject to disconnection. The written notice will
advise the tenant/occupant that they have the right to become a customer of the District without being
required to pay the amount due on the delinquent account. The tenant/occupant must also be willing
to assume financial responsibility for subsequent charges for water service at the address(es) served by
the master meter and comply with the application requirements for new water service, including
payment of fees. If one or more of the occupants are willing and able to assume responsibility for the
subsequent charges for water service to the satisfaction of the District, or if there is a physical means,
legally available to the District, of selectively terminating service to those occupants who have not met

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 95 of 105



the requirements for service, the District will make service available to the occupants who have met
those requirements. The District will also deliver a doorhanger notice to each unit in the complex at
least 48 hours before disconnection of water service.

9. Written Notice Returned Undeliverable

If the written disconnection notice is returned through the mail as undeliverable, the District will contact
the customer by phone informing them of the impending disconnection and offer to provide a copy of
the disconnection policy and discuss options to avoid service disconnection including alternative
payment options. Per section 8 above, the District will also make a reasonable, good faith effort to visit

the residence and leave a doorhanger notice of imminent discontinuation for non-payment along with a
copy of this policy.

10. Disconnection of Water Service for Non-Payment
The District will not disconnect water service on any Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or at any time

during which the business offices of the District are not open to the public. The water service will be
disconnected by locking the meter in the off position. The account will be closed if payment is not
received within 7 days of initial disconnection and additional fees and application paperwork will be
required to re-establish active service.

If a water meter that has been locked off by the District because of nonpayment is unlocked by any
person other than a District employee, the District will re-lock or remove the water meter to deter
further theft of water. Customer, occupant, tenant or property owner will have to pay a meter
reinstallation charge if meter has been removed, in addition to all other charges, including damages and

other charges due for service restoration before meter is reinstalled and/or service is reinstated by the
District.

Each service address account, whether active or inactive, will be billed a monthly Basic Fee. If a tenant
account is disconnected for non-payment and the tenant does not re-establish service, the tenant
account will be closed and an inactive account in the name of the property owner or landiord will be
established, unless a continuous service agreement has been established, in which case the owner or
landlord account will be an active account. If an owner or landlord account is disconnected for non-
payment, the account will be transferred from active to inactive status, and the billing will continue.

11. Re-establishment of Service

In order to resume service that has been disconnected for non-payment, the customer must pay any
disconnection fees; any current and past due water billing charges including interest or penalties; any
reconnection fees, subject to the limitations in Section 12; and a guarantee deposit if required by the
District. The District will endeavor to reconnect service as soon as practicable but, at a minimum, will
restore service before the end of the next regular working day following payment as required in this
Section. Water service that is turned on by any person other than District personnel or without District
authorization may result in damage to District facilities and result in additional charges or fees. Any
damages that occur as a result of unauthorized restoration of service are the responsibility of the
customer or property owner and service will not be restored until such damages are paid.

12. Reconnection Fees

Reconnection fees cannot exceed $50 during normal business hours and $150 during nonoperational
hours (after-hours). Those fees cannot exceed the actual cost of reconnection if that cost is less than
the statutory caps. The caps may be adjusted annually for changes in the Consumer Price Index for the

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 96 of 105



Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario region beginning January 1, 2021. The amount of the current
reconnection fees are included in Article 14 of the Rules & Regulations.

13. Re-establishment of Service After Business Hours

Service restored at the request of a customer after 3:00 pm Monday through Thursday, anytime on
Friday, weekends, or holidays will be charged an after-hours reconnection fee, subject to limitations of
Section 12. Service will not be restored after regular business hours unless the customer has been
informed of the after-hours reconnection fee and has signed an agreement acknowledging the fee and
agreeing to contact the District no later than 9:00 am the following business day to pay the subject fee.
The after-hours reconnection fee must be paid at the time requested if done so in the office, or by 9:00
am the following business day if requested after regular business hours, and may not be paid later as
part of a payment arrangement. District staff responding to service calls are not permitted to collect
payment but will instruct the customer to contact the District before 9:00 am the following business
day. Services with water meters that have been removed cannot be re-established after hours.

Sometimes water service is discontinued because the service is for a new account and the District has
not received a request to establish service from the new account holder. If service is being restored
after regular business hours because the customer has yet to establish an account, the customer must
agree to contact the District before 9:00 am the following business day to establish service by
completing water account application paperwork and paying new account fees and the after-hours turn
on convenience charge.

Service restored after regular business hours at customer request will be disconnected without further
notice if customer fails to follow-up with the District office by 9:00 am on the following business day, as
the customer committed to do when signing and agreeing to the after-hours turn on.

14. Natification of Disposition of Returned Check or Credit Card Payment

Upon receipt of a returned payment, whether check or credit card, taken as payment of water service or
other charges, the District will consider the account not paid and the amount of the returned payment
will be deemed delinquent. The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to notify the customer
of the returned payment.

All amounts paid to redeem a returned check or credit card payment and to pay the returned payment
charge must be in a different form of payment than the original returned payment. Accounts paid
before the due date with payments that are subsequently returned not paid will be assessed the
delinquent account service charges as if the subsequently returned payment was never received.

15. Returned Checks for Previously Disconnected Service
If a customer tenders a non-negotiable check as payment to restore water service previously

disconnected for non-payment and the District restores service, the District may promptly disconnect
service without providing advanced notice.

Any customer that makes payment to restore service turned off for non-payment which is subsequently
returned by the bank unpaid, will be required make payments in cash for a period of 24 months from
the date of the returned payment. After two years of good payment history including no more than
two late payments and no lock-offs, customer may request to be removed from the cash-only
status.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 97 of 105



16. Copy of Policy

If a customer cannot access a copy of this policy via the District’s website, the District will email a copy
of the policy or make one available at the District’s office at no charge on request. If a customer
requests a mailed copy, the District will charge for the mailing service but not the document.

17. Termination of Service Related to Unauthorized Action
This policy does not apply to the termination of service due to an unauthorized action of a customer,
such as violation of the District’s Rules & Regulations.

18. Annual Reporting
The number of annual discontinuations of water service for non-payment will be reported on the

District’s website and also reported to the State Water Resources Control Board.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 98 of 105



RESOLUTION NO. 19-1017

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT
AMENDING RESOLUTION 97-572, AS AMENDED,
ADDING A COLLECTION POLICY AND AMENDING
RULES AND REGULATIONS TO IMPLEMENT SB 998

WHEREAS, with Resolution 97-572 as amended, the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin
Water District has previously established Rules and Regulations pertaining to operating the
District and

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 998, referred to as the Water Shutoff Protection Act, establishes new
laws regulating the disconnection of water service for nonpayment, including the requirement to
establish a written policy on discontinuation of water service; and

WHEREAS, Joshua Basin Water District will incorporate regulations implementing SB 998 plus
other related rules into a Collection Policy further amending the District’s Rules and
Regulations, as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Exhibit A attached, the Collection Policy, is
hereby added in its entirety to the District’s Rules and Regulations; and

FURTHER RESOLVED that the District’s Rules and Regulations are hereby amended as
follows:

INTRODUCTION

SECTION I
GENERAL PROVISIONS

He or His is understood throughout the document to represent both the male and female gender.

Discontinuance of Service: Any customer failing to comply with all or any part of the Rules and
Regulations or failure to pay rates and charges of this District will be subject to having water
service to their customer service facility discontinued. The District will mail notification of
notice of intent to discontinue service, and the customer will be afforded an opportunity to be
heard before water service will be discontinued. Water service to such customer will not be
restored until such customer will have complied with such rule or regulation or have paid such

rate or charge. See Exhibit A for the District’s Collection Policy. which regulates discontinuance
of service for non-payment.

Unless remedied, the customer's service may be discontinued within ten days after the District
notifies him of violation. If such violation endangers the public’s health and safety, the District
may discontinue water service immediately without notice.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 99 of 105



Customer Complaints: Customers are welcome to contact the District office at any time during
regular business hours to ask any questions or to file any complaints regarding the operation of
the District. The appropriate staff will address any such questions and complaints and make
every reasonable attempt to arrive at an agreeable understanding with the customer. If desired,
the customer will be granted a conference with the Manager upon scheduling a mutually
convenient time.

Should a customer be unable to reach satisfaction, regarding his question or complaint, he may
submit his question or complaint in writing to the Board for consideration or may appear in
person before the Board at its next regular scheduled meeting after requesting to be included on
the agenda of the meeting. Action by the Board will not be delayed more than to the time of the
next regular meeting unless further delay is agreed to by the customer to permit the full
discovery of facts regarding the question or the full discovery of facts regarding the question or
complaint. The Board will try to arrive at a fair and impartial solution consistent with the
District's best interest.

See Exhibit A for the District’s Collection Policy. which provides the policy for disputing or
appealing water bills. which is separate from this policy about general complaints.

The appeal of Administrative Rulings: authorized District representatives in accordance with the
rules and regulations make all rulings, decisions, and determinations, Such rulings may be
appealed in writing, addressed to the District Board, and delivered to the District Manager within
five days of the administrative ruling being received by the customer. Such appeals may be
considered by the District Board at its next regular meeting and the Board's ruling, in full
compliance with the law and the District's rules and regulations, will be final.

Variances: The customer shall have the right to request a variance from specific provisions of
any of these rules and regulations. All requests for a variance shall be submitted in a written
form, and the appropriate fee shall be paid before the request will be considered. Variance
applications submitted at least ten days before a scheduled Board Meeting shall be included on
the agenda of the next regular meeting, and the decision of the Board will be final. The customer
will be given a written notice of the disposition of the case, including any conditions or approval,
which may have been adopted.

ARTICLE 1.18 Terms of Bill Payment

Bills for metered water service shall be rendered at the end of each billing period. Such bills
shall be due and payable at the office of theJBWDB District, and shall be delinquent twenty-one
days after date of the billing. Active Accounts may be turned off after written notice from the
+BWD-District and an opportunity to be heard, if payment is not made within thirty—five-sixty
(60) days of the biling-delinquent date. Delinguent-Aceount-Charges-on-lnactive-Aecounts-per

Aertieled3-may-be-subject-te-lienforunpaid-charges—All past due charges must be paid before
Active Account status is granted for the affected parcel.

ARTICLE 1.24 Turn Off Meter for Non-Payment

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 100 of 105



Customers are encouraged to avoid disconnection of water service for non-payment by

contacting the District to determine if they are eligible for a payment arrangement that would
spread the balance due over a longer payback period. See Exhibit A for the District’s Collection

Policy which reguiates disconnection of service for non-payment. Watermeters-wit-be-turned

%Wmmm%wmmmmmm

b—Each-actual-useragrees-to-the terms-and-conditions-applieable to-obtaining waterfrom-JBWD:

H-a-eustomer-hasrequested-and-been granted-a-payment-arrangement-or-contract-amortization
agreemeaﬁﬁ extend-thei-payment-overa-perivd ﬂ&-ka—e?:&eed—l—l—ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ—ﬂﬁdmn—iaﬂﬁ—m

ARTICLE 1.27 Delinquent Account Service Charge

Accounts not paid on or before the date that they become delinquent may be assessed a one-time
delinquent account service charge plus a monthly service charge on the unpaid balance.
Accounts paid before the due date with payments that are subsequently returned (e.g. NSF
check) will also be charged the delinquent account service charges as indicated above. See
Exhibit A for the District’s Collection Policy which regulates Delinquent Account Service
Charges.

ARTICLE 1.28 Payment Arrangements and-Contracts

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 101 of 105



Customers that cannot pay their bills by the scheduled cut-off date may be able to make a
payment arrangement :

payments-that gives them addltlonal time to make payment The J—B\\LQ-DIStl'lCt w1ll con51der

whether the customer qualifies for a payment arrangement-or-eentract-based-en-past-payment
histery-and-trackreecord-of honoringprevious-commitments. Water service will not be

terminated for any customer who complies with the payment arrangement, if the customer also
keeps the account current as new charges accrue in each subsequent billing period. TheJBWD
sends-eustomers-aletterindicating-a-paymentarrangement-agreement—Aferfailure-to-comply
with-the payment-arrangement-or eontraet - the-agreement will be-terminated-and-the remaining
balance-is-Hnmediately due-oraceountvill besubjeetto-eut-offwithin4S-hours:_See Exhibit A
for the District’s Collection Policy which regulates Payment Arrangements.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19" day of December 2019 by the Joshua Basin
Water District Board of Directors by the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Robert Johnson, President
Joshua Basin Water District

Mark Bank, General Manager and Board Secretary
Joshua Basin Water District

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 102 of 105



RESOLUTION NO. 19-1017

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT
AMENDING RESOLUTION 97-572, AS AMENDED,
ADDING A COLLECTION POLICY AND AMENDING
RULES AND REGULATIONS TO IMPLEMENT SB 998

WHEREAS, with Resolution 97-572 as amended, the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin
Water District has previously established Rules and Regulations pertaining to operating the
District and

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 998, referred to as the Water Shutoff Protection Act, establishes new
laws regulating the disconnection of water service for nonpayment, including the requirement to
establish a written policy on discontinuation of water service; and

WHEREAS, Joshua Basin Water District will incorporate regulations implementing SB 998
plus other related rules into a Collection Policy further amending the District’s Rules and
Regulations, as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Exhibit A attached, the Collection Policy, is
hereby added in its entirety to the District’s Rules and Regulations; and

FURTHER RESOLVED that the District’s Rules and Regulations are hereby amended as
follows:

INTRODUCTION
SECTION I
GENERAL PROVISIONS

He or His is understood throughout the document to represent both the male and female gender.

Discontinuance of Service: Any customer failing to comply with all or any part of the Rules and
Regulations or failure to pay rates and charges of this District will be subject to having water
service to their customer service facility discontinued. The District will mail notification of
notice of intent to discontinue service, and the customer will be afforded an opportunity to be
heard before water service will be discontinued. Water service to such customer will not be
restored until such customer will have complied with such rule or regulation or have paid such
rate or charge. See Exhibit A for the District’s Collection Policy, which regulates discontinuance
of service for non-payment.

Unless remedied, the customer’s service may be discontinued within ten days after the District
notifies him of violation. If such violation endangers the public’s health and safety, the District
may discontinue water service immediately without notice.

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 103 of 105



Customer Complaints: Customers are welcome to contact the District office at any time during
regular business hours to ask any questions or to file any complaints regarding the operation of
the District. The appropriate staff will address any such questions and complaints and make
every reasonable attempt to arrive at an agreeable understanding with the customer. If desired,
the customer will be granted a conference with the Manager upon scheduling a mutually
convenient time.

Should a customer be unable to reach satisfaction, regarding his question or complaint, he may
submit his question or complaint in writing to the Board for consideration or may appear in
person before the Board at its next regular scheduled meeting after requesting to be included on
the agenda of the meeting. Action by the Board will not be delayed more than to the time of the
next regular meeting unless further delay is agreed to by the customer to permit the full
discovery of facts regarding the question or the full discovery of facts regarding the question or
complaint. The Board will try to arrive at a fair and impartial solution consistent with the
District's best interest.

See Exhibit A for the District’s Collection Policy, which provides the policy for disputing or
appealing water bills, which is separate from this policy about general complaints.

The appeal of Administrative Rulings: authorized District representatives in accordance with the
rules and regulations make all rulings, decisions, and determinations. Such rulings may be
appealed in writing, addressed to the District Board, and delivered to the District Manager within
five days of the administrative ruling being received by the customer. Such appeals may be
considered by the District Board at its next regular meeting and the Board's ruling, in full
compliance with the law and the District's rules and regulations, will be final.

Variances: The customer shall have the right to request a variance from specific provisions of
any of these rules and regulations. All requests for a variance shall be submitted in a written
form, and the appropriate fee shall be paid before the request will be considered. Variance
applications submitted at ieast ten days before a scheduled Board Meeting shall be included on
the agenda of the next regular meeting, and the decision of the Board will be final. The customer
will be given a written notice of the disposition of the case, including any conditions or approval,
which may have been adopted.

ARTICLE 1.18 Terms of Bill Payment

Bills for metered water service shall be rendered at the end of each billing period. Such bills
shall be due and payable at the office of the District and shall be delinquent twenty-one days
after date of the billing. Active Accounts may be turned off after written notice from the District
and an opportunity to be heard, if payment is not made within sixty (60} days of the billing
delinquent date. All past due charges must be paid before Active Account status is granted for
the affected parcel.

ARTICLE 1.24 Turn Off Meter for Non-Payment

Customers are encouraged to avoid disconnection of water service for non-payment by
contacting the District to determine if they are eligible for a payment arrangement that would

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 104 of 105



spread the balance due over a longer payback period. See Exhibit A for the District’s Collection
Policy which regulates disconnection of service for non-payment. ARTICLE 1.27 Delinquent
Account Service Charge

Accounts not paid on or before the date that they become delinquent may be assessed a one-time
delinquent account service charge plus a monthly service charge on the unpaid balance.
Accounts paid before the due date with payments that are subsequently returned (e.g. NSF
check) will also be charged the delinquent account service charges as indicated above. See
Exhibit A for the District’s Collection Policy which regulates Delinquent Account Service
Charges.

ARTICLE 1.28 Payment Arrangements

Customers that cannot pay their bills by the scheduled cut-off date may be able to make a
payment arrangement that gives them additional time to make payment. The District will
consider whether the customer qualifies for a payment arrangement. Water service will not be
terminated for any customer who complies with the payment arrangement, if the customer also
keeps the account current as new charges accrue in each subsequent billing period. See Exhibit
A for the District’s Collection Policy which regulates Payment Arrangements.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19" day of December 2019 by the Joshua Basin
Water District Board of Directors by the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Robert Johnson, President
Joshua Basin Water District

Mark Bank, General Manager and Board Secretary
Joshua Basin Water District

Special Board of Directors Meeting
December 19, 2019 Page 105 of 105





